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2,759,179 1,808,406 1,253,039 1,604,946 2,052,578
36,927 23,662 16,503 22,034 30,075
1,480,436 63,607 574,012 652,435 469,067
1,869,790 79,445 717,514 761,392 540,365
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72 (1,560 ) 28 (599
)
2016 ( )
2016
(2016 )2.86
2017
EBITDA(
) 1,705
1,859 2017
EBITDA 16 EBITDA 443
516
10 414 460

13 671
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OooooOodd
2016 20 ( )
2017 0.25 2016
( ) 539 3,316
10 4.635 4.41
2016 636
2015 10
2014 11 21 2015 28 2015 10 2015 27 2015
2015 10 23
EIT 2012 2027 30
EIT
20
559
2016
40 169 107

(

) 611 666
2016 2017

2015 10
2016
) 2017
24
32 24
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2017
649

17

(i)

HZM

HHI

10

HHI1

2017

2017

22

2018

30

2018
2017
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OooooOodd
( ) 603
2017
82
511 623 20.21
48 2017
2027 30 45 2018
2017
Q)
EBITDA( ) 2017 1,032
Giii)
10 2018
372 ( ) 2018 435 (
2017
100
HH1 469
600

2020
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HHI
HH1
2016 2017 2016 2017
30 30 30 30
652 469 11
658 476 11
HHI 651 465
(HHI )
2016 2017 2016 2017
30 30 30 30
212 379
5,239 4,870 - 1,248 1,240
212 208 - 155 140
43 27 - - 900
665 647
5,706 5,484 2,068 2,927
3,638 2,557
(HHI )
2016 2017 2016 2017
30 30 30 30
50 61 4,028 3,718
6,392 6,231
253 225
16 10 253 274
6,711 6,527 4,281 3,992
2,430 2,535
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2016 2017 2016 2017
30 30 30 30

6,356 6,930

6,673 5,526

46 31

(D 13,075 12,487 13,075 12,487

6,719 5,557

@
2016 2017 30
652 469
( )
30
2016 2017
/( ):
(41,344) (37,070)
1,456,093 1,641,787
(1,336,198) (1,823,834)
) /( 78,551 (219,117)
2016 30 1,456
823 62
212
1,336 250
1,070
2017 30 1,642
22
1,824 1,799
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2017 30

2017 30 434 (2016 428 )

2017 30

2017 30
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2016
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2015 11 30

2016

2017 30

2017 29
43
2017 15
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( ) 2003 23
2017 30
(i) 2003 23
4,500,000,000 2,156,879,750 (

(i)
2003 25
(i)
2003 31
(iv)
2003 25

)
2003 25

i) 2003 25

ii) 2003 25

(viii) HHI
2004 2004 21 COFTEC
(ix) HHI 2004
14
(viii) 2004

) HHI 2005

(viii) 2004
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(xi) HHI 2007
HH1
HHI
(xii) HHI 2008
(viii) 2004
(Xiii)HHI 2013 11

(viii) 2004
(xiv) HHI 2014 12
(viii) 2004
xv) HHI 2015
(xv)
18
(viii) 2004

(xvi) HHI 2015

(viii) 2004
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6 1
6 3
6 1
2017
2016 (M
2018 2019
2025
(i1)

569 ( )

2019 2024 (iii)
2015 10
682
2020
2016
20
2017 912
2017
2017 30
HH1 ( ) 469 (2016 30 652 )
0.15 (2016 30 0.21 ) 2017

670 500 ( 434 )

469
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2017 30
99.9 )
912 ( )
2012
351
610
2017 30
)
(a) 99.9 (2016 30
(b) 77 (2016 30
30 )

0.2 (2016

2017

2017

30

(1,240

4,618

74

6,007
99.9 )

30
440

2008

(2016

21
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( ) 99.8 (2016 30
0.1 )
(2016 30 262 )
1,619 2016
20
2011
2012 12
2013
30 16 )
140
(2016 30 5,439 )
0.1 (2016 30 0.1 )
(2016 30 23 ) (2016
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(€Y
(2017 30 )
10,000,000, 000 3,081,690,283 6,918,309,717
(2017 30 )
( 0.10 3,081,690,283
3,081,690,283
@
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(D)

(D)

2,961,690,283

296,169,028.

4,250,025,556

2,961,690,283

296,169,028.

4,250,025,556

2,961,690,283

296,169,028.

4,250,025,556

)

120,000,000

3,081,690,283

12,000,000

172,200,000

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556

®
2012 31
2012 31
2012 30
2012 10 31
2012 11 30
2012 12 31
2013 31
2013 28
2013 31
2013 30
2013 31
2013 30
2013 31
2013 31
2013 30
2013 10 31
2013 11 30
2013 12 31
2014 31
2014 28
2014 31
2014 30
2014 31
2014 30
2014 31
2014 31
2014 30
2014 10 31
2014 11 30
2014 12 31
2015 31
2015 28
2015 31
2015 30
2015 31
2015 30
2015 31
2015 31
2015 30
2015 10 31
2015 11 30
2015 12 31

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,422,225,556
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(@) (@)
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 29 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422,225,556
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2016 12 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2017 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
2017 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,422 ,225,556
(1)120,000,000 ( )
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O
(2017 30 )
) 0 )
109 2,988,904,023 96.99
7,580 92,786,260 3.01
7,689 3,081,690,283 100.00
®)
(2017 30 )
)
)
183 64 2,055,287,337 66.69
o 183 64 2,055,287,337 66.69
183 64 2,055,287,337 66.69
@
183 64 2,055,287,337 66.69
(©)
@ 183 64 2,055,287,337 66.69
HKSCC
199 933,448,354 30.29
2,988,735,601 96.98
()
100 SFO 15
@) 100
SFO 15
©) 100
SFO 15
) 100
SFO 15
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1 1 ©)
( )
2017 30 11.6
( 13.58986 ( 1.17154 ) 10
( 11.71540 ( 1.17154 ))
2017 8.6 ( 9.59416
( 1.11560 )) (
) 20.2 ( 23.18402 )
16.6 ( 19.5221 ( 8.4
1.18735 8.2
1.16444 )y 22

100
2017 10 26 2017 2017 12
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¢
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
30 30 30 30 30
4.75 4.15 4.09 3.90 4.85
() 68 60 59 56 70
3.55 3.52 3.76 3.42 3.83
() 51 51 54 49 55
2003
@)
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
4.18 4.18 4.25 4.58 4.51 4.50
() 60 60 61 66 65 65
4.02 4.07 4.09 4.19 4.34 4.35
() 58 58 59 60 62 62
2003
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SFO 15
1958
Award) 22
1983 2013
2003 2013
C X
(
(
C X
(
C X
C X
C X
( )(
( )(
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(KCWG  FICE)(82 )(1935 12

(
(CPPCC

)

(Doctorem honoris causa))

O )(
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(Hong Kong Institution of Engineers) HKIE 2015
2015(HKIE Gold Medal 2015)
(South China Morning Post) DHL 2013
2013
(the Lifetime Achievement Award)
CNBC (the 9th Asia 2010
Business Leaders Award) (the
Lifetime Achievement Award)
(Officer de L'Ordre de 2007
la Couronne)
Blaz Lorkovic (the Order 2007

of Croatian Danica with figure of Blaz Lorkovic)

(Gold Bauhinia Star)(G.B.S.) 2004
(Sing Tao Newspaper Group) 2004
2003( / )(Leader of the Year 2003(Business/Finance))

(the Asian Freight & Supply Chain 2003
Awards) 2003 (Personality of
the Year 2003)
(the Order of St. Michael 1997
and St. George) (Knight Commander) (KCMG)
(Independent Energy) 1996
(Industry All-Star Award)

CEO 1996
(International CEO of the Year)
(Business Week) (the Best 1994
Entrepreneurs)
(the International Road Federation)( ) 1994
(Man of the Year)
(the South China Morning Post) 1991
DHL (Business Man of the Year)
(Asia Finance Magazine)( ) 1991

(Asia Corporate Leader)

(Chevalier de L'Ordre de la Couronne) 1985
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65 )(932 10 18 )
2003
SFO 15
45 ) (JP)(1972 )
2003 2003
SFO 15
1994
1999
2015
11
(Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service)
(Melco Resorts & Entertainment Limited)
(Asian Youth
Orchestra)
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) (the Hong Kong Amateur Hockey Club)

(Hong Kong Academy of Ice Hockey)

(the Hong Kong Ice Hockey Officials Association)

(the Hong Kong lce Hockey Association)
(the Chinese Ice Hockey Association)
Sports Federation)

Association)

(the Macau Ice

(the Ice Hockey

2006 (Young Global Leader)

2010 (the Hong Kong Institute of Directors)
(the Director of the Year Award) 2011 2012 2013

(Corporate Governance Asia)

(the Asian Corporate Director Recognition Award) 2012 2013
) CEO(Asia ™ s Best CEO (Investor Relations))
58 )(1959 22 )
2003 2003
1983
1989
2015 26 2002
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(GBS, JP,PhD,DSc)(77 ) (1940 28 )
2009 2013 30
« )
2009
(Virya Foundation Limited)(
) 18
2009 40

1979 (Ten Outstanding Young Persons
in Hong Kong) 1989 (Non-official

Justice of the Peace)(JP) 1991 OBE 2002
(the Gold Bauhinia Star)(GBS) 2008( )

(Leader of the Year Awards 2008 (Education))
(Lee & Man Paper
Manufacturing Limited)
(Henderson Land Development Company Limited) (The Hong Kong
and China Gas Company Limited)
(Chevalier International Holdings Limited)
(K. Wah
International Holdings Limited) (2009 2015 )

(Legislative Council) (1985 1991 )
(1998 2013 )
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65 )(1952 )
2011 2012 12
2012 10 18
(First National
Bank of Chicago) (Wells Fargo) (Merrill Lynch) 33
1990 /
2003
( )
(Langham Hospitality Investments)
LHIL (LHIL Manager Limited)
CP) (Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited)
(Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust) TOM (TOM Group Limited)
(Power Assets Holdings Limited)
(Lifestyle International Holdings Limited)
LHIL P
2012 12 2016 (New World China Land
Limited) (2016 ) ( )
(AEON Credit Service (Asia) Company Limited)(2013 2016 )
(Adjunct Professor) (Advisory Board)

(Regional Cabinet)
(World Green Organization Limited)

(Committee on Certification for Principalship)
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(Vocational Training)

2007 13
2008 29

2011 2015

(JP)(43 )(1974 11 10 )
2011 2015

26
( BEA ) 2004 2009 BEA

2009
2014 BEA
(Towngas China Company Limited)

(China Overseas Land & Investment Limited)

12
(Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee)
(Financial Services
Development Council)
(Hong Kong - Europe Business Council)
(Hong Kong - Taiwan Business Co-operation Committee) 2018
(the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales)( ICAEW )

(Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen)

(the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)

(the Treasury Markets Association) 1CAEW
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(44 )(1973 25 )
20
(Les Enphants Co., Ltd.)(
) 2002 2014 2017 23
2015 12
(Shanghai Les Enphants Children Articles Co., Ltd.)
(Shanghai Lead Han Trading Co., Ltd)

(Suzhou Les Enphants Logistics Co., Ltd.) 2009 10

2016 10 ocp ( ) (OCP Asia (Hong Kong) Limited)
(senior portfolio manager) 2009 12 2013 3 (responsible officer)
ocP ( ) (OCP Asia (Hong Kong) Limited) 1997 11 2009

( ) (Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited) 2003

10 2009 (responsible officer) 1995
CFA (CFA)
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 30
( )
19,973,000 15,921,000 17,639,000 20,226,000 15,359,000
2017 30
2017 30 (SFO 15 )
SFO 352
)
()
( ( (ii)( (
18
) ) ) )
17,471,884 6,815,920 | 27,051,498 7’6725??9 59,009,302 1.91
6,274,075 - 17,500 - 6,291,575 0.20
18,000,000 - - - | 18,000,000 0.58
507,750 - - - 507,750 0.01
(i)
(i) SFO

(iii) 7,670,000
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®) -
(M
( .
( )| anc (
) )
75,083,240 | 27,073,300 |111,450,000 30'68((’;??9 244,286,540 28.08
27,691,500 - 70,000 - | 27,761,500 3.19
28,900,000 - - - | 28,900,000 3.32
585,000 - - -] s85,000 0.06
(O)
(i) SFO
@iii) 30,680,000
2017 30 SFO 352
( 485 ) MPF
30,000
MPF 799,000 (912,000 )(2016
876,000 ( 1,060,000 ))
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2013 HHI
QY
( 2013 HHI
2023 10 21

(B) 2013 HHI

2013 HHI

12 2013 HHI

308,169,028

@ (

(b)
©
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OooooOodd
2013 10 22
) 2013 HHI
2013 HHI
®
(
)
(2013 HHI
2013 HHI
10
2013 HHI
2013  HHI
10 )
10
)( )
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(A) 2007 25 ( )
15
(10 )
®)
®) (
)
(
)
10 (
)
©) 2017 30
(2016 )
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o

2017 30
A.5.1 A.5.6
A.5.1

A.5.6
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(i) (i) (G

-
-
o’

2004
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2016 30 2016 12 31
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2017 30

2017 2016
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2016
/
2016
(KONG
FICE) " N/A N/A
( IP)(
) ( ) N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A
P

N/A N/A
N/A N/A

(GBS JP PhD DSC)

P

N/A N/A

7

2017
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(Companies Registry of Hong Kong) (Guide on Directors’ Duties) /
( ) (Guide for

Independent Non-Executive Directors)

(KCMG  FICE) o o o
o o o
apP) o o o
O O o
(GBS JP PhD DSc) o o o
o o o
pP) o o o
o o o
/
( ) 2016 11 14
( )

15
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DTT
DTT 2016 12 31
2017 30
( )

1,602
383
10
1,995
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DTT

€0S0( )

2013 2016

C0SO

2012
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©
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2016 /2017
/
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68
116 @
)
13.51(2)
HHI
@
C D1« (D)) (D)) (D))
961 320 1,036 340
(15,847) (5,277) (17,084) (5,607)
364 0 368 0
(6,002) (0) (6,068) (0)
1,325 320 1,404 340
(21,849) (5,277) (23,152) (5,607)
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2017 30
2016 2017

39,543 652 48,221 29,060 479 33,135
(190) ®) (229) (190) ®) (218)
(40,161) (662) (48,475) (40,578) (669) (46,296)
(3.793) (63) (4,617) 19) ) 2)

556,178 9,172 669,260 680,353 11,219 776,308

551,577 9,096 664,160 668,626 11,026 762,907
(31,086) (513) (37,441) (37,033) (611) (42,284)

10 520,491 3,583 626,719 631,593 10,415 720,623
(599,864) (107,554)

(13,581) (224) 7,793 128

506,910 3,359 26,855 639,386 10,543 613,069

511,332 8,432 615,702 622,671 10,268 710,451

9,159 151 11,017 8,922 147 10,172

520,491 3,583 626,719 631,593 10,415 720,623

497,751 8,208 19,845 630,464 10,396 603,427

9,159 151 7,010 8,922 147 9,642

506,910 3,359 26,855 639,386 10,543 613,069

13 0.1659 2.74 19.98 0.2021 3.33 23.05
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2017 30
2016 2017
16 6,176,025 101,842 7,207,421 5,171,922 85,285 5,958,054
17 4,785 79 5,585 4,785 79 5,513
18 473 8 552 283 4 325
6,181,283 101,929 _ 7,213,558 _ 5,176,990 85,368 _ 5,963,892
691 1 806 941 16 1,084
21 19,675 325 22,960 1,662 27 1,915
22 652,435 10,759 761,392 469,067 7,735 540,365
672,801 11,095 785,158 471,670 7,778 543,364
6,854,084 113,024 _ 7,998,716 _ 5,648,660 93,146 _ 6,507,256
23 270,603 4,462 308,169 270,603 4,462 308,169
6,402,017 105,569 7,478,779 5,255,732 86,667 _ 6,058,169
6,672,620 110,031 7,786,948 5,526,335 91,129 6,366,338
46,554 768 54,328 30,826 508 35,511
6,719,174 110,799 _ 7,841,276 _ 5,557,161 91,637 _ 6,401,849
25 127,412 2,101 148,690 80,215 1,323 92,408
7,498 124 8,750 11,284 186 12,999
134,910 2,225 157,440 91,499 1,509 105,407
6,854,084 113,024 7,998,716 _ 5,648,660 93,146 _ 6,507,256
652,435 10,759 761,392 469,067 7,735 540,365
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2017 30
( )
2015 270,603 5,367,936 114,710 (947,760) 371 2,441,437 7,247,297 51,797 7,299,094
(13,581) (13,581) (13,581)
511,332 511,332 9,159 520,491
(13,581) 511,332 497,751 9,159 506,910
371) 371
12 (721,212) 166,508 (517,724)  (1,072,428) (1,072,428)
(14,402) (14,402)
2016 30 270,603 4,646,724 114,710 (794,833) 2,435,416 6,672,620 46,554 6,719,174
7,793 7,193 7,793
622,671 622,671 8,922 631,593
7,793 622,671 630,464 8,922 639,386
12 (1,541,965) 287,703 (522,487) (1,776,749) (1,776,749)
(24,650) (24,650)
2017 30 270,603 3,104,759 114,710 (499,337) 2,535,600 5,526,335 30,826 5,557,161
( )
2015 4,462 88,517 1,892 (15,628) 6 40,259 119,508 854 120,362
(224) (224) (224)
8,432 8,432 151 8,583
(224) 8,432 8,208 151 8,359
©) 6
12 (11,892) 2,745 (8,537) (17,684) (17,684)
(238) (238)
2016 30 4,462 76,625 1,892 (13,107) 40,160 110,032 767 110,799
128 128 128
10,268 10,268 147 10,415
128 10,268 10,396 147 10,543
12 (25,427) 4,744 (8,616) (29,299) (29,299)
(406) (406)
2017 30 4,462 51,198 1,892 (8,235) 41,812 91,129 508 91,637
2009 30
2016 30 0.40 2016 2015 30
0.18 1,254,262,000 2016 554,704,000
1,541,965,000 2016 721,212,000
287,703,000 2016 166,508,000
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( )

2015 308,169 5,010,321 110,708 1,051,408 422 2,578,093 9,059,121 64,746 9,123,867
(595,857) (595,857) (4,007) ~ (599,864)

615,702 615,702 11,017 626,719

(595,857) 615,702 19,845 7,010 26,855

422) 422

1 (671,359) (620,659)  (1,292,018) (1,292,018)
(17,428) (17,428)

2016 30 308,169 4,338,962 110,708 455,551 2,573,558 7,786,948 54,328 7,841,216
(107,024) (107,024) (530)  (107,554)

710,451 710,451 10,172 720,623

(107,024) 710,451 603,427 9,642 613,069
1 (1,434,336) (589,701)  (2,024,037) (2,024,037)
(28,459) (28,459)

2017 30 308,169 2,904,626 110,708 348,527 2,694,308 6,366,338 35,511 6,401,849

(

)
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2017 30
2016 2017
551,577 9,096 664,160 668,626 11,026 762,907
(36,035) (594) (43,914) (23,539) (388) (26,950)
2,211 36 2,693
(2.329) (38) (2.859) (5.521) (91) (6,185)
190 3 229 190 3 218
(556,178) (9,172) (669, 260) (680, 353) (11,219) (776,308)
(40,564) (669) (48,951) (40,597) (669) (46,318)
615 10 718 (250) ) (289)
552 9 664 ©) ©) (10)
(1,845) (30) (2,218) 3,786 62 4,361
(41,242) (680) (49,787) (37,070) (611) (42,256)
(102) ) (119)
(41,344) (682) (49,906) (37,070) (611) (42,256)
(402) @ 492)
(212,000) (3,496) (261,502)
788,000 12,994 965,288
(353,200) (5,824) (441,221)
353,200 5,824 433,023
822,735 13,567 995,685 1,619,433 26,704 1,876,566
62,238 1,027 75,886 22,361 369 25,593
(4,478) () (5,246) () © ®
1,456,093 24,011 1,761,421 1,641,787 27,073 1,902,151
369,453 6,092 445,000
(618,973) (10,207) (740, 700)
(2,332) (39) (2,844)
(1,069,944) (17,643)  (1,288,974)  (1,799,184) (29,669)  (2,024,119)
(14,402) (237) (17,428) (24,650) (406) (28,459)
(1,336,198) (22,034)  (1,604,946)  (1,823,834) (30,075)  (2,052,578)
78,551 1,295 106,569 (219,117) (3.613) (192,683)
574,012 9,466 717,514 652,435 10,759 761,392
(128) @ (62,691) 35,749 589 (28,344)
652,435 10,759 761,392 469,067 7,735 540,365
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2017 30

2016 2017
15 2,467,110 40,682 2,879,117 2,470,059 40,731 2,845,508
19 1,398,165 23,056 1,631,658 1,435,903 23,678 1,654,160
3,865,275 63,738 4,510,775 3,905,962 64,409 4,499,668
224 4 262 252 4 291
474 8 553 1,652 27 1,903
20 283,588 4,676 330,947 241,200 3,977 277,862
22 651,896 10,750 760,763 468,554 7,727 539,774
936,182 15,438 1,092,525 711,658 11,735 819,830
4,801,457 79,176 5,603,300 4,617,620 76,144 5,319,498
23 270,603 4,462 308,169 270,603 4,462 308,169
24 4,522,994 74,584 5,285,959 3,521,842 58,075 4,060,726
4,793,597 79,046 5,594,128 3,792,445 62,537 4,368,895
4,161 69 4,856 4,746 78 5,468
20 3,699 61 4,316 820,429 13,529 945,135
7,860 130 9,172 825,175 13,607 950,603
4,801,457 79,176 5,603,300 4,617,620 76,144 5,319,498
651,896 10,750 760,763 468,554 7,727 539,774
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38
41
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IFRS 2012 2014
IAS 16
IAS 38

EDINETOOOO

O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

IAS

118/232

HHL )

28

IFRS

IFRS

38

oOoOooodn

16



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

ooooOoog
2016
IFRS
IFRS  IFRS
IFRS  IFRS
IFRS IFRS 2014 2016
IFRS
IFRS IFRS IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 10
1AS 28

IFRS 15
IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23
1AS
IAS 12
IAS 40

2017

2017 2018

2018

2019

2021
IFRS

IFRS (i)
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16
Q)
2017 30 5,171,922,000 5,958,054,000 2016
6,176,025,000 7,207,421,000
680,353,000 776,308,000 2016 556,178,000 669,260,000
592,754,000 675,815,000 2016 521,789,000 627,042,000
2016 11,711,000
13,491,000 2016 17,485,000 20,405,000
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2017 30
6,176,025,000

669,260,000
179,787,000

Gii)
2017
62,822,000

2017

30

IFRS 8

30

EDINETOOOO
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oOoOooodn
5,171,922,000 5,958,054,000 2016
7,207,421,000
680,353,000 776,308,000 2016 556,178,000
207,115,000 2016 149,406,000 174,356,000
54,533,000
2016 67,293,000 78,531,000
EBITDA
( )

2016

129/232



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

EBITDA

1,479,816 1,261,771 (414,320) (276,685) 570,766
522,108 442,905 (181,722) (221,257) 39,926
2,001,924 1,704,676 (596,042) (497,942) 610,692
26,869

9,166

1,179
(40,351)
(3,793)
(1,244)

(82,027)

520,491
(9,159)
511,332

2017

EBITDA

1,560,590 1,343,096 (460,490) (324,108) 558,498
598,673 515,856 (210,161) (198,386) 107,309
2,159,263 1,858,952 (670,651) (522,494) 665,807
23,539

(40,768)
(19)
©)

(16,959)

631,593
(8,922)
622,671

22,480,000 2016 84,356,000
5,521,000 2016 2,329,000
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( )
2016

EBITDA

1,779,673 1,517,226 (498,181) (332,801) 686,244
627,777 532,621 (218,068) (266,428) 48,125
2,407,450 2,049,847 (716,249) (599,229) 734,369
32,566

11,348

1,448
(48,704)
(4,617)
(1,539)

(98,152)

626,719
(11,017)
615,702

2017

EBITDA

1,779,681 1,531,445 (525,081) (369,679) 636,685
682,726 588,608 (239,528) (226,385) 122,695
2,462,407 2,120,053 (764,609) (596,064) 759,380
26,950

(46,514)
(22)

®
(19,163)

720,623
(10,172)
710,451

25,348,000 2016 101,011,000

6,185,000 2016 2,859,000
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EBITDA
EBITDA
i
ii
i

2016

2017

2016

2017

283,000 325,000
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OooooOodd
/
2016 2017
610,692 734,369 665,807 759,380
(84,356) (101,011) (22,480) (25,348)
29,842 35,902 37,026 42,276
556,178 669,260 680,353 776,308
( )
2,603 1,278 3,881 (3,881) 36,035 36,035
2,015 723 2,738 (2,738) 23,539 23,539
( )
3,106 1,535 4,641 (4,641) 43,914 43,914
2,309 821 3,130 (3,130) 26,950 26,950
2016 473,000 552,000
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2016 2017
26,869 32,566 23,539 26,950
9,166 11,348
2,329 2,859 5,521 6,185
1,164 1,429
15 19
39,543 48,221 29,060 33,135
788,000,000 5.75 2016 30
2016 2017
2,211 2,693
1,582 1,924 19 22
3,793 4,617 19 22
2016 30
2016 2017
636,683 766,064 767,736 875,955
(80,505) (96,804) (87,383) (99,647)
(38,456) (46, 240) (45,098) (51,428)
38,456 46,240 45,098 51,428
556,178 669,260 680,353 776,308
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9.
2016 2017
EIT 41,009 49,698 84,230 97,710
25 (9.923) (12.257) (47.197) (55.426)
31.086 37.441 37.033 42,284
2017 30 EIT
84,223,000 97,702,000 2016 39,765,000
48,159,000
2016 2017
551,577 664,160 668,626 762,907
25 137,894 166,040 167,157 100,727
2016 25 ' ' ' .
(1,317) (1,629) 1 (19)
(6.755) (8.188) (7,242) (8,258)
10,467 12.631 10,197 11,635
(139.045) (167.315) (170.088) (194.077)
25 (9,923) (12,257) (47,197) (55,426)
39,765 48,159 84,223 97,702
31.086 37.441 37.033 47,284
10.
2016 2017
1,325 1,602 1,404 1,602
11 20,226 24,344 15,359 17,475
11.202 13.577 16.202 18.533
31.428 37.921 31.561 36.008
190 229 190 218
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11.
2016
( )
2016 2017
248 1,513 1,761 263 1,602 1,865
207 1,210 396 1,813 219 1,281 422 1,922
165 3,567 1,107 15 4,854 175 3,782 1,79% 16 5,769
a 165 3,041 935 15 4,156 175 3,232 995 16 4,418
b 109 4,025 2,448 6,582
348 348 368 368
348 348 368 368
c 321 321 342 342
g 43 43 307 307
1,954 13,356 4,886 30 20,226 2,217 9,897 3,213 32 15,359
( )
2016 2017
300 1,828 2,128 300 1,829 2,129
250 1,463 475 2,188 250 1,463 475 2,188
200 4,313 1,327 18 5,858 200 4,313 2,023 18 6,554
a 200 3,677 1,121 18 5,016 200 3,685 1,121 18 5,024
b 133 4,843 2,900 7,876
420 420 420 420
420 420 420 420
c 387 387 390 390
g 51 51 350 350
2,361 16,124 5,823 36 24,344 2,530 11,290 3,619 36 17,475
a. 2015 26 2015 2015 25
b. 2016
c. 2015 26
d. 2016
2016
2016
2016 2017
1,068 1,218
121 138
16 18
1,205 1,374
2016 30 2017 30
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12.
2016 2017
2017 30
0.0860 9.59416
2016 2016 30 258,862 307,359 275,647 295,662
0.0840 9.97370
2016 30
0.0820 9.54840
2016 2015 30 258,862 313,300 246,840 294,039
0.0840 10.16650
2016 30
0.4000 46.57760
2016 2015 30 554,704 671,359 1,254,262 1,434,336
0.1800
21.78540
1,072,428 1,292,018 1,776,749 2,024,037
2017 30
0.1160 13.58986
2016 2016 30 252,699 294,252 357,476 418,797
0.0820
9.54840
2017 30
0.1000 11.71540
2016 2016 30 1,232,676 1,435,377 308,169 361,032
0.4000
46.57760
1,485,375 1,729,629 665,645 779,829
2017 30
0.1160 13.58986 0.1000 11.71540
13.
2016 2017
511,332 615,702 622,671 710,451
2016 2017
3,081,690,283 3,081,690,283
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2016 30

30

14.

18

799,000

2017

912,000

2015

30

MPF

2016
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MPF
876,000
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2015 2016
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15.

16.

2016

30
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28

2016 2017
1,816,650 2,120,031 1,816,650 2,092,781
650,460 759,086 653,409 752,727
2,467,110 _ 2,879,117 _ 2,470,059 2,845,508
2016 2017
2,020,789 2,358,261 2,020,789 2,327,949
2,520,218 2,941,094 2,520,218 2,903,291
2,552,963 2,979,307 1,636,243 1,884,952
(312,934) (365,194) (358,032) (412,452)
(1,346,656)  (1,571,547)  (1,434,039) (1,652,013)
5,434,380 _ 6,341,921 _ 4,385,179 5,051,727
2,449,500 2,858,567 2,449,500 2,821,824
(2,020,789)  (2,358,261) (2,020,789) (2,327,949)
312,934 365,194 358,032 412,452
741,645 865,500 786,743 906,327
6,176,025 _ 7,207,421 5,171,922 _ 5,958,054

2017 30

(
4,899,000,000

(

138/232
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)

48

2008

)
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O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

10 45

30

1,680,000,000

294,000,000

1,715,000,000

2003 17

4,900,000,000
857,500,000

2015 30

6,110,000,000

35

424,000,000
212,000,000 263,410,000
2016 30

6,715,000,000

35
106,000,000 129,214,000

212,000,000

2010 25

139/232

1997 30
10 50
702,000,000 471,000,000
35
588,000,000
30
35

1,210,000,000

605,000,000

25

oOoOooodn

10



2016

2016
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Ooooooog
5,600,000,000 35
980,000,000 1,960,000,000
2013 25 25
30 2017 30 4,899,000,000
50
IFRS
30 2017 30
)
2016 2017
442,671 506,952 433,569 449,184
8,687,492 12,710,801 8,141,371 12,388,255
9,130,163 13,217,753 8,574,940 12,837,439
391,047 100,150 740,085 122,764
50,000 50,000
77,176 30,326 42,577 20,457
518,223 130,476 832,662 143,221
(270,142) (84,059) (328,303) (88,988)
(2,833,502)  (8,027,810) (4,410,493)  (7,436,121)
(342,165) _ (111,836) (297,249) _ (139,976)
(3,445,809) (8,223,705) (5,036,045) (7,665,085)
(105,805) (28,500) (357,857)
(40,000)
(1,181) (10,688) (4,032) (9,175)
(547,079) _ (298,279) (600,291) _ (299,062)
(694,065) _ (337,467) (962,180) __ (308,237)
5,508,512 _ 4,787,057 3,400,377 _ 5,007,338
48 50 48 50
2,644,086 2,393,529 5,037,615 1,636,501 2,503,669 4,140,170
(35,152) (35,152) (54,427) (54,427)
2,608,934 2,393,529 5,002,463 1,582,074 2,503,669 4,085,743
1,135,908 37,654 1,173,562 1,049,040 37,139 1,086,179
3,744,842 2,431,183 6,176,025 2,631,114 2,540,808 5,171,922

140/232



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

Ooooooog
)
2016 2017

516,597 591,613 499,471 517,460
10,138,303 14,833,505 9,378,859 14,271,270
10,654,900 15,425,118 9,878,330 14,788,730

456,352 116,875 852,578 141,424

58,350 57,600

90,065 35,390 49,049 23,566

604,767 152,265 959,227 164,990

(315, 256) (98,097) (378,205)  (102,514)
(3,306,697)  (9,368,454) (5,080,888)  (8,566,411)
(399,306)  (130,513) (342,431)  (161,252)
(4,021,259) (9,597,064) (5,801,524) (8,830,177)
(123,474) (33,260) (412,251)

(46,680)

(1,378) (12,473) (4,645) (10,570)
(638,441) _ (348,092) (691,535) _ (344,519)
(809,973) __ (393,825) (1,108,431) __ (355,089)
6,428,435 5,586,494 3,027,602 5,768,454

48 50 48 50
3,085,649 2,793,247 5,878,896 1,885,249 2,884,227 4,769,476
(41,022) (41,022) (62,700) (62,700)
3,044,627 2,793,247 5,837,874 1,822,549 2,884,227 4,706,776
1,325,604 43,943 1,369,547 1,208,494 42,784 1,251,278

4,370,231 2,837,190 7,207,421 3,031,043 2,927,011 5,958,054
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(ii)

175,742,000 210,440,000

17.
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)
2016 2017
3,082,949 1,044,217 3,251,230 1,197,346
36,479 3,163 119,080 12,893
3,119,428 1,047,380 3,370,310 1,210,239
(36,479) (3,163) (119,080) (12,893)
(172,942) 30,087 12,697 38,195
(47,300) (22,808) (66,465) (9,833)
(383,234)  (123,764) (373,643)  (147,751)
(85,107) (41,922) (88,148) (46,245)
(696,323)  (362,602) (778,377)  (419,292)
(33,796)  (442,515) (130,315)  (359,109)
(421,878) (456,989) (33,030)
1,242,369 80,693 1,369,990 220,281
48% 50% 48% 50%
596,337 40,346 636,683 657,595 110,141 767,736
)
2016 2017
3,707,651 1,255,555 3,707,669 1,365,451
42,571 3,691 137,181 14,853
3,750,222 1,259,246 3,844,850 1,380,304
(42,571) (3,691) (137,181) (14,853)
(206,969) 36,212 14,904 43,551
(56,871) (27,425) (75,868) (11,204)
(461,088)  (148,762) (426,162)  (167,973)
(102,423) (50,338) (100,446) (52,609)
(837,254)  (435,127) (887,543)  (477,883)
(40,535)  (532,857) (148,241)  (409,697)
(507,855) (521,806) (37,733)
1,494,656 97,258 1,562,507 251,903
48% 50% 48% 50%
717,435 48,629 766,064 750,003 125,952 875,955
46,834,000 52,809,000 2016
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18.
2015 547 684 4,681 5,851 5,228 6,535
(64) (389) (453)
326 400 76 92 402 492
/ (119) (142) (119) (142)
2016 30 873 1,020 4,638 5,412 5,511 6,432
(14) (69) (83)
/ (20) (24) (20) (24)
2017 30 873 1,006 4,618 5,319 5,491 6,325
2015 413 517 4,554 5,692 4,967 6,209
(38) (378) (416)
105 127 85 102 190 229
/ (119) (142) (119) (142)
2016 30 518 606 4,520 5,274 5,038 5,880
™ (67 (74
127 145 63 73 190 218
/ (20) (24) (20) (24)
2017 30 645 744 4,563 5,256 5,208 6,000
2016 30 355 414 118 138 473 552
2017 30 228 262 55 63 283 325
19.
2016 30 2017 30
0.66 4.92 2016 0.66 4.92
2017 30 582,339,000
670,854,000 2016 557,898,000 651,067,000
853,564,000 983,306,000 (2016 840,267,000 980,591,000 )
20.
2017 30
60,471,000 69,662,000 2016 57,790,000
67,441,000 180,729,000 208,200,000
2016 225,798,000 263,506,000
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2017 30

1,777,000

942,848,000

21.

2017 30

795,300,000

22.

2017 30

2017 30
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1,985,000 2,287,000 2016
2,073,000 818,444,000
2016 1,922,000 2,243,000
2016 2017
19,200 22,406
474 552 1,652 1,903
1 2 10 12
19,675 22,960 1,662 1,915
1,684,456,000 1,954,044,000 2016
963,184,000
0.01 10.36 2016 0.01 5.24
2016 2017
651,787 760,635 468,190 539,355
624 728 860 990
24 29 17 20
652,435 761,392 469,067 540,365
0.01 10.36 2016 0.01 5.24
2016 2017
651,657 760,484 468,069 539,215
215 250 468 539
24 29 17 20
651,896 760,763 468,554 539,774
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23.
0.1
2015 2016 30 2017 30 10,000, 000,000 1,000,000
2015 2016 30 2017 30 3.081.690.283 270,603
2003 16 2003
16 HHL 2003 HHI
2003 HHI i
il
Gii) (iv)
) (vi)
28
2013 15 2003  HHI
2003  HHI 2003
HHI
2003 HHI
2015 2016
2008 24 5.8 400,000 (400,000)
5.8 5.8
2017 30 2003  HHI
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2003  HHI
2008 24 160,000 2008 2009 31 2009 2015 31 5.8
2008 24 160,000 2008 2010 31 2010 2015 31 5.8
2008 24 160,000 2008 2011 31 2011 2015 31 5.8
2008 24 160,000 2008 2012 31 2012 2015 31 5.8
2008 24 160,000 2008 2013 31 2013 2015 31 5.8
2008 24 300,000 843,000 5.8 5.8  25.94 3.60 4.66 1.31
2013 10 22 HHL
2013 HHI 2013 HHI
10 i
ii
(iii)
iv
)
(vi) HHL
2013 HHI
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2007 25
HHI
12
24.
4,038,
680,716,000
2016
2015
2016 30
2017 30
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HHI
HHI 2007 25 15
HHI
HH1
2007 25
22
2017 30
585,000 3,969,757,000 2016 5,327,440,000 5,116,629,000
933,826,000 1,065,131,000 2016
777,667,000 3,104,759,000 2,904,626,000
4,646,724,000 4,338,962,000
( )
5,367,936 (970,954) 371 900,419 5,297,772
297,650 297,650
(371) 371

12 (721,212) 166,508 (517,724) (1,072,428)
4,646,724~ (804,446) 680,716 4,522,994
775,597 775,597
12 (1,541,965) 287,703 (522,487) (1,776,749)
3,104,759 _ (516,743) 933,826 3,521,842
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( )

2015 5,010,321 596,955 422 1,044,601 6,652,299
(427,625) (427,625)

353,303 353,303
(427,625) 353,303 (74,322)
(422) 422

12 (671,359) (620,659) (1,292,018)

2016 30 4,338,962 169,330 777,667 5,285,959
(78,361) (78,361)

877,165 877,165

(78,361) 877,165 798,804

12 (1,434,336) (589,701) (2,024,037)

2017 30 2,904,626 90,969 1,065,131 4,060,726

(i) 2009 30
2016 30 0.40 2016 2015 30
0.18 1,254,262,000 2016 554,704,000
1,541,965,000 2016 721,212,000
287,703,000 2016 166,508,000
(i)
25.
2015 137,335 171,668
(10,721)
29,842 35,902
(39,765) (48,159)
2016 30 127,412 148,690
(856)
37,026 42,276
(84,223) (97,702)
2017 30 80,215 92,408
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2016 2017
672,110 784,352 470,893 542,469
4,785 5,585 4,785 5,513
676,895 789,937 475,678 547,982
4,460 5,205 6,746 7,771
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Q)

2016 2017 2016 2017

2 29 17 20 = - - .

625 730 864 995 4,455 5,199 6,064 6,986
2017 30
2017 30
48,458,000
55,824,000 2016 49,169,000 57,380,000
(i)
22
22
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2017

2017

57,496,000

(i)

2017

@iv)

30

2016

30

30
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100 2016 100
4,691,000 5,404,000
6,524,000 7,614,000
100 2016 100
49,910,000
2016 48,127,000 56,164,000
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©
28.
2016
30
BVI 97.5 100
20,000
100
97.5
100
100
HHI 100 100
HHI
29.
2016 2017
1,152 1,394 1,261 1,439
2016 2017
1,053 1,229
2017 30
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2016

30.

2016

31.

32.

2017

33.

30

30

2016

2008

30
2016

2017 30

1,459,000

30

428,449,000

107

158
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2017 30
1,414,000 1,613,000
1,765,000
702,000,000 471,000,000
702,000,000
11
434,028,000 500,000,000
500,000,000
2017 16
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2016 2017
2,001,924 33,012 2,407,450 2,159,263 35,606 2,462,407
19,091 315 22,280 63,605 1,049 73,273
2,021,015 33,327 2,429,730 2,222,868 36,655 2,535,680
(9,197) (152) (9,898) 76,801 1,266 87,778
(19,091) (315) (22,280) (63,605) (1,049) (73,273)
(34,108) (562) (41,010) (36,820) (607) (42,019)
(245,834) (4,054) (295,703) (253,224) (4,176) (288,544)
(101,974) (1,681) (122,807) (106,011) (1,748) (120,814)
(596,231) (9,832) (716,478) (670,841) (11,062) (764,827)
(260,502) (4,296) (313,623) (264,673) (4,364) (301,741)
754,078 12,435 907,931 904,495 14,915 1,032,240
(233,587) (3,852) (281,212) (272,902) (4,500) (311,617)
520,491 3,583 626,719 631,593 10,415 720,623
511,332 8,432 615,702 622,671 10,268 710,451
9,159 151 11,017 8,922 147 10,172
520,491 8,583 626,719 631,593 10,415 720,623
2016 2017
30,750 37,207 26,277 30,080
9,166 11,348
19,228 23,120 22,549 25,714
(110,145) (131,822) (24,453) (27,613)
28,560 34,288 26,941 30,706
13,244 15,961 25,487 28,891
(9,197) (9,898) 76,801 87,778
2016 2017
233,836 281,358 241,414 275,217
4,583 5,674
629 773
19,228 23,120 22,549 25,714
515 620 550 627
258,791 311,545 264,513 301,558
1,711 2,078 160 183
260,502 313,623 264,673 301,741
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2017 30

2016 2017
466,379 7,691 544,264 432,935 7,139 498,741
11,631,547 191,804 13,574,016 11,101,501 183,064 12,788,929
370,822 6,115 432,749 393,372 6,487 453,164
4,785 79 5,585 4,785 79 5,513
12,473,533 205,689 14,556,614 11,932,593 196,769 13,746,347
1,173 19 1,369 1,115 18 1,285
1,920 32 2,241 1,611 26 1,855
55,703 918 65,006 35,966 593 41,433
252,028 4,156 294,116 434,191 7,160 500,188
652,435 10,759 761,392 469,067 7,735 540,365
9,750 161 11,377 6,431 106 7,409
973,009 16,045 1,135,501 948,381 15,638 1,092,535
13,446,542 221,734 15,692,115 12,880,974 212,407 14,838,882
270,603 4,462 308,169 270,603 4,462 308,169
6,402,017 105,569 7,478,779 5,255,732 86,667 6,058,169
6,672,620 110,031 7,786,948 5,526,335 91,129 6,366,338
46,554 768 54,328 30,826 508 35,511
6,719,174 110,799 7,841,276 5,557,161 91,637 6,401,849
5,373,629 88,611 6,271,025 5,834,763 96,215 6,721,647
370,772 6,114 432,691 393,322 6,486 453,106
149,406 2,464 174,356 179,787 2,965 207,115
293,389 4,838 342,385 248,998 4,106 286,846
49,704 820 58,005 39,409 650 45,400
6,236,900 102,847 7,278,462 6,696,279 110,422 7,714,114
369,077 6,086 430,713 387,056 6,383 445,889
65,036 1,072 75,897 171,771 2,832 197,880
5,911 98 6,898 6,523 108 7,514
50,444 832 58,869 62,184 1,025 71,636
490,468 8,088 572,377 627,534 10,348 722,919
6,727,368 110,935 7,850,839 7,323,813 120,770 8,437,033
13,446,542 221,734 15,692,115 12,880,974 212,407 14,838,882
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Fou the yrar ended B0 fune 2007

NOTES 2016
RMBON]

Other income B 39,543
Depreciation [190;
General and administrative
expenses 40,161}
Finance cosis 7 3,793) §
Share of results of joint ventures 8 556,178
Prafit before tax 551,577
Income tax expense 9 {31.086) (37.441)
Profit for the year 10 520,49 _
Other compechensive (exponse)
income
fem that will not be neclassificd
o prcdit or loss:
Exchange loss arising
on translation to
presentation currency - : (599, 864)
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange (loss) gain arising
on translation of
fonign operations (13,581)
Total comprehensivie income
for the year 506,910
Profit for the year atributable o !
Owners of the Company 511,332 [ ' 615,702
Nun-controlling inlerests 9,159 11,017
520,491 |
Total comprehensive income
attributalde 1o:
Owners of the Company 497,751
Non-controfling interests 9,159
506,910
RME cents
Earnings per share 13
Basic and diluted 16,59

HOPEWELL HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2006017 107
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 fure 2017
NOTES 2016
FMFWU
ASSETS
Mon-current Assels
Interests in joinl ventures: 16 G, 176,025 5 1.207.421
Investment 17 4,785 : 5.585
Property and eguipment 18 473 552
6,181,263
Current Assels
Deposits and prepayments 691 506
Dividend and other receivables n 19,675 22,960
Bank balances and cash 22 052,435 761,392
672,801
Tatal Assets fr 54, 004 7,998,716

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves
Share capital 23 270,603 308,169
Share premium and reserves bA02,017 o TAZBTT9

Equily attributable o owners of

the Company 6,672,620 7,786,948
Non-controlling interests 46,554 54,328
Total Equity 6,719,174
‘Non-current Liahility
Deferred tax liahility 25 127,412 ! 924

Current Liability

Payables and accruals 7,498
Total Liabilities 134,910 157,440

Total Equity and Liabilities £.854,084 7,998,716

Cash and cash equivalents 652,435 ! m

Thomas Jefierson WU Alan Chi Hung CHAN
Managing Diector Depuly Managing Director

108 HOPOWELL HICHIWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ANNLUAL BEPOET 201617
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Fow thee year evadedd 0 jume 2017
Antribuifable to owmers of the Company
Peaple’s
Repubilic
of China
ey Share Nea-

oipildl  premiom  reienes e remene  peofis Tl imlereshs Toad

EMED0  RMIDOD AMEON0 RMETOD  EMED00  EMETOD RMETO00  RMETO0  RMETO0

Asat 1 July 2015 WOMD 5IGTA36  TM4TI0 (TN Wi 24047 TMII9T 5L 7AW
Exchange loss on translation )

o forsige cperations = - - s - - s - s
Profit for the yesé = = - = - SR SN 9159 520480
Total comprehensive fexpenset

income for the year - - - (13380 - S IS 9050 506900
Expiry of vested share options = - = - B m - - -
Dividends recognied a5

detribution during the

year {ote 12)
Dividends i 1o

mor-Contnlling inferests - - - - - - = (4 (4400
A 2 30 June 2016 ] i L

FN.12) - lbh508 - (517724} (1,072,428 - (N2 428

Asat 30 June 2017

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in Renminbi
(“RMB™) (the presentation currency of the Group), the equity transactions and accumulated earnings
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (*“HKD®) are translated at the exchange rates at the transaction dates,
Before the change in functional currency of the Company from HKD ta RMB during the year ended 30 June
2009, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve represented the difference between the
equity transactions and accumulated earnings translated al the exchange rates at the transaction dates and
the assets and liabilities translated at the closing rates at the end of cach reporting period. Subsequent to the
change in functional currency of the Company, the exchange differences recognised in translation resene
represented framslation of its foreign operations,

The special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2016 of RMBA0 cents (2016: for the year ended
30 June 2015 of RMB18 cents) per share amounting lo approximately RMEBE1,254,262,000
(201 6: RMB554,704,000) was distributed from the share premium arisen at the tlime before the change in
functional currency of the Company from HKD to RMB. Accordingly, the share premium and the
corresponding translation reserve had been debited by RMB1,541,965,000 (2016: RMB721,212,000) and
credited by RMB287,703,000 (2016: RMB166,508,000) respectively.

HOPEWELL HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2006017 10
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

(FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE ONLY]

capital  preminm  eeseeves  peseme e profils
HESTOO  HESOD0  MESTDOO  HESOO0  HES'O00  HESO00  HASTO0  HRETO0  HRSTOO
an

Asat 1 by 2015 504,169 S.III-UJII THT08  1.0531 408 L) 505410 G740 1,123 867
Eschang loss on translation )

{1y presentation (unrency - - - [BYRET) - - 9EA57  HOT) (5990640
Proki for the year - - - = - BIBTE BIST0E LT R2TIR
Todal comprebensive (expense)

inpome ko (he yeer - - - B8 - BIATZ 19,845 700 26,835
Expiry of vested shane options - = = - mn = — .
Diviclends recognised a5

disriation duting the _

year (hole 12| - (671355 - == - [B206F (1292008 - (1292018
Divicends pai to

ron-controling imesests (T8 (17426

A al 30 Jume 2017

The translation reserve represented (i) the accumulated net exchange difference anising on translation of
foreign operations (i.e. operations with functional currency of RMB) to the presentation currency of the
Group before the change in functional currency af the Company fram HKD to RMB: and (i} the
accumulated net exchange difference arising on translation of the consolidated financial statements
denominated in RME, the functional currency of the Company, to the presentation currency of the Group
after the change in functional currency of the Comipany,

TI0 HORWELL HICHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ANSUAL EEPORT 2aan T
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the yrar enadet 30 june 2017
2016
RIMB 00
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prodit before tax 331,577
Adjustments for:
Interest income 136,035 . | 43,914}
Interest expenses 2211 2,693
Net exchange gain 2,329 5,521) {2,859
Depreciation 190 229
Share of results of joint ventures (336, 178) A : (669,260)
Ciperating cash flows hefore movements
in working capital (40,564] : : (48,9510
Decrease (increase) in deposits and
prepayments _ 615 ' 718
Decrease (increase) in other receivables 552 b
{Decrease} increase in payables and
accruals (1,8451 3,786 2,218
Cash used in aperations. (12420 @70
Income taxes paid 1102} (119
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES i41,344) 1 (49,906)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (402) - (492)
Registered capital cantribution o
a joint venture (212,000 - {261,502}
Repayment of loans from a joint venture TRE 000 - s, 28
Placement af time deposits with
original maturdy over three months (353,200] == 1441,221)
Withdrawal of time deposits with
ariginal maturity over three moaths $53,200 - 433,021
Dividends received from a joint venture
inet of FRC withhalding tax) B22,735 i 995, bl
Interest received 61,238 75,82
Income tax paid for interest received (4,478} ) i5.246)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1456008 | 1,8
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007
2016 2016
RMBOO0 R HES D00
{FCIR INF
s
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
MNew bank loans raised 369,453 - 445,000
Repayment of bank loans {618,973} (740,700
Interest paid 2,332) - (2844}
Diividends paid 1o:
— owners of the Company (1,065, 944) (1,288,974)
~ non-controlling interests of a subsidiary (14,402} } {17,428

MET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 78,551
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BROUGHT FORWARD 574,012 717.514
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE

RATE CHANGES 128) ] (62,6910
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CARRIED FORWARD 652 435

Tt Sl ard cash aspalva s comgicie cack af banks and cash on hand, andd deposits with bunks subsjectsd o imsigniticant risk of

change im value, anid with a makurity of thees moniba o less flom date of placing,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ar 0 feoe 20T

Company'’s Statement of Financial Position

NOTES 2016
RME OO0

ASSETS

Mon-curreni Assels

Investments in subsidiaries 15 2,467,110 24879117
Amount due from a subsidiany 19 1,398,165 1 1,631,658
3,865,275 '

Current Assels

Deposits and prepayments 224 262
Interest and other receivables 474 553
Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 283,588 330947
Bank Balances and cash 22 651,896 760,763

036,102 | vomsas |
Total Assets 4,801,457 & | 5.603300

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 23 270,603 ; 08, 169

Share premium and reserves 24 4,522,594 5,285,959
4,793,597 j

Current Liabilities

Pavables and accruals 4,161 ¥ 4,856

Amounts due 1o subsidiaries 20 3.699 | } 4316

Total Liabilities 7,860 :

Total Equity and Liabifites 4,801,457 5603300 5

Cash and cash equivalents 651,896 4 760,763

Thamas [efferson WU Alan Chi Hung CHAN
Managing L¥rector Deputy Managing Direclor
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the yrar wernded JEF e 2007

1. General Information

Hopewel | Highway Infrastructune Limited ithe “Company®) is an exempled company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange®). The Company's immediate holding company is Anber
Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Company's
ultimate holding company is Hopewell Holdings Limited (“HHL™), a public limited company
incorpocated in Hong Kong whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information in the annual report.

The Company s an investment halding company, Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and the joint ventures are sol out innotes 28 and 16 respectively,

The Company's functional currency and presentation currency are RME, The presentation of HKD
amounts in these consolidated linancial statements is foe information purpose only.,

2, Application of New and Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following amendments to IFESs issued by Infernatinonal Accounting
Standards Board for the first tirme in the current year:

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 Investment Entities: Applyving the Consolidation Exception
(Amendmients)

IFRS 11 {Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

IAS T (Amendments) [ige logure Initiative

IAS 16 and |AS 38 Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
{Amendments) Amortisalion

IAS 16 and |AS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
iAmendments)

IAS 16 and IAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Accepiable Methods of Depreciation and

Amaortisation

The Group has applied the 1A% 16 and 1AS 38 (Amendments) “Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation” for the first time in the current year. 1AS 38 (Amendments) “Intangible
Assets” introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis for amaortisation of
an intangible asset. This presumption can only be rebutted in thie following two limited circomstances:

(2l when the infangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenuee, or

(b} when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset ane highly comelated,

In additicen, the amendments also clarify that in choosing an appropriate amortisation method an entity
could determine the predominant limiting factor that is inherent in the intangible asset.
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2. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") tcontinued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the currenl year (continued)
IAS 16 and IAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and

Amariisation (continued)

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively in the current year. The amendments have had
no malerial impact on the financial position or perfformance of the Group upon adoption on 1 July
2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of amortisation of s
intangible assets.

The application of the other amendmients to IFRSs in the current year has bad no material effect on the
armounts. reported andfor dischosures set out in these comsolidated inapcial statements.

New and amendments lo IFRSs in issue bul nol yel effective
The Group has nol sarly applied the following new and amendments (o 1IFRSE that have beea saoed
but are not yet effective;

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cyele’

IFRS 2 {Armendrminds) Classification and Measurerment of Share-based Paymeent
Transactions’

IFRS 4 (Amendmenis) Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Coniracts’

IFRS 9 Firancial Instruments'

IFRS 10 and 1A5 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

{Amaendments) or laint Venture®

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customets and the related
Amendments'

IFRS 16 Liases!

IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts®

IFRIC 22 Foreign Curency Transactions and Advance Consideration”

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!

1AS 7 {Amendments) [hsclosure Initiative”

1AS 12 (Amendments) Becognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses®

IAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property!

Fitecrive for anmual periods heginniag on o alter 1 Janusry 2007
1 Effeciive for annual petiods beginning on of aiter 1 january 2007 or 1 fansiary 2018, a5 appeopeiate
Y Fiiective for annual periods beginning on oe after 1 January 2008
- Eife tive ferr amial jreriods besginning on o aiter 1 Janusry 200%
! Eifective for anmial jreriods beginniag on of aites 1 Januery 2021
y Effective for annaial periocds beginning an o after o date o be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

2. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") icontinued)

Mew and amendments (o IFRSs in issue bul nat yel cifective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS @ introduces (1) new requitements for the classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting: (i) impairment reguirements for fimancial assets; and (i)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by inteoducing a ‘fair value
through other comprehensivie income’ measurement category for certain simiple debt instruments.

The Group’s availabledor-sale investmaents, including those currently stated ab cost less impairmend,
will either be measured as fair value through profit or loss or be designated as fair value through other
comprehensive income (subject o fulfillment of the designation criterial, In addition, the expected
credit loss model may resull in early provision of credit losses which are ol vet incored in relation 1o
the Group’s firancial assets measured at amortised cost.

IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
besginning on 1 July 2018 and the application of IFRS 9 will not have significant impact on amounts
reparted in the consolidated financial statements.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors anticipate that the application of the other new and

amendments to IFRSS will have no matenal impact on the results and the iinancial position of the
Group,

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The consolidaied financial statements have been prepared in acoordance with the IFRSs. In addition,
the cansolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reparting period, as explained in the accounting policies sef out below,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Fair vatlue is the price that would be recedved o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants al the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue,

The principal acoounling palicies an: set oul below.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorparati the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsicianes, Control is achieved when the Company:

*  has power over the investee;
* s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investes; and
*  has the ability 0 wse its power (o affect its refurns,

The Group reassesses whother or nod it contrals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one o more of the three clements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during thee year are included i the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
ather comprehensive income from the date the Group gains contral until the date when the Group
ceases 10 control the subsidiary.

Profit of loss and cach item of other comprebensive income are alleibuted o ihe owners of Lthe
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Todal comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
10 the owners of the Company and o the non-controlling interests even if this resulis in the
non-controlling interests haviag a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjusiments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Investments in subsidiaries
In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries ane stated at cost fess any
ictemified impairment.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is & joint arcangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement
have rights 1o the net assets of the joint arrangement. loint contral is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the paries sharing confrol,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Interests in joint venlures (continucd)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
staternents using the equity method of accounting, The financial statements of joint ventunes used for
etuity accounting purposes are prepaned wsing uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereaiter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture, When the Group's shane of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, foem part of the
Group's nel invistment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group bas incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

The requirements of 1A% 39 “Financial Instruments: Becognition and Measurement” are applied to
determine whether it is necessary fo recognise any impairment with respect to the Group's investment
in & joint venture, When necessary, the entine carrying amount of the investment {including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing ils recoveralile amoom (higher of value in e and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment recognised forms par of the carrying amount of the investment, Any
reversal of that impairment i recognised in accordance with 1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases,

The Growp has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and development of
the 100l expressways operated by the joint ventures, which were not accounted for by those entities.
Such cost are included in additional cost of investments in joint ventures and are amortised over the
joint venture period on the samie basis as that adopted by the relevant joint venfures in respect of
amaorfisation of its project cost, commencing from the date of operation of the project undertaken, Cn
disposal of a joint veniure, the atirbutable amount of the unamortised additional cost of investments is
included in the determination of the profit o loss on disposal.

When a groap entifty fransacts a sale or contribution of assets with a joint venture of the Group, prodits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidsted financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related
to the Group,

Properly and equipment
Froperty and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment, if amy,

Depreciation is recopnised s0 as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated usedul lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the cffect of any changes in estimale accounted for on a prospective
hasis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
henefits ane expected to arise from the continued wse of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the

disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carying amaunt of the asset and s recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue i3 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Révenue is
recognised when the amount of revenee can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
weanomic benelits will flow ta the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Giroup's activities, as described below.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference o the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expecied |ife of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount an initial

FeECOfEnIlion,

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights 1o receive payment have
bBeen estabilished.

Management fee income is recognised when the related serices ane provided.

Leasing
Lirases are classified as finance leases whenever the ferms of the lease transier substantially all the risks
and rewards of Gwnership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Chperating leases payment s reCognised as an expense on a straight=line basis over the lease teon,

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual groop entity, fransactions in currencies other
than the funclional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-manetary
itens that are measured in terms of historical Cost in a foreign Currency are nol retranslated,

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary
itermes, are recopnised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.,

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements of the Group in RMB, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated inlo RMB using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, Income and expenses items are translated al the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates al the dates of transactions are used, Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
SV,

On the disposal of a foreign operation (e, a disposal of the Group’s enlire inferest in a foreign
operation, o a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
A partial dispasal of an interest in a joint arrangement that includes a i'nreign operations of which the
retained inlerest becomes a financial assel), all of the exchange differences accumalated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualifyving assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended e or
sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets until such time as the asseis are substantially ready for their
intended vse or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets i deducted from the barmowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borfowing costs ane recagnised a8 expenses in profit o loss in the perod in which they ane
incurred.,

Retiremend benefil costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme ithe *MPF Scheme®) are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contribulions.

Taxalion
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tx cerrently payable and deferred tax,

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘prodit
besioee tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
becawse of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and items (hal are never
taxabile or deductible. The Group's labilities for cument tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or subsiantially enacted by the end of the reporting period,

Drederred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all laxable temporary
differeaces. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible femporary difference fo the
extent that it is probable that taxable profis will be available against which those deductible iemparary
differences can be utilised, Such deferred tax assets and liabilitics are not recagnised if the tempaorary
difierence arises from the inifial recognition of assels and labilities in a transaction that afiects nelther
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for laxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and inferests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable fulure, Deferred tax assets arising from deductible terporary differences associated with
such investments and inlerests are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that there will be
sulfficient taxable profits against which to ulilise the beneiits of the temporary differences and they are
expecied (o reverse in the foresepable future,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation {continued)

The carrying amount of defirnid tax assets is reviewed a1 the end of each reporting period and reduced
foa thae ercteent that if is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of such asset to be recovered,

Deferned tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate and tax laws) that have been
enactid ar substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The maeasurimient of deferred tas liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences thal would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or seitle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and defernid tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that ane
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
duferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income o directly in equity respectively.

Financial instrumenls
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party o the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs thal are
directly attributabile to the acquisition o issue of financial assets and financial labilites are added (o
or deducted fram the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as apprapriate, on initial
recoRnition,

Financial assels

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and available-lor-sale financial assets, The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the Gnancial assets and is determined at (he time
of initial recognition.

Efiective interest method

The effective interest method &5 a method of calculating the amorised cost of a debt insteement and of
allacating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rale that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective inferest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorder period, 1o the net carmying
Amounl on initial recognition,

Interest income is recognised on an effective inerest basis for debt instruments,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including dividend and other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, bank
halances and cashh are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinabile payments thal are not
quaoted in an active market. Subseguent o initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the efiective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below],
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assels are non-derivalives that ane either designated & available-for-sale or
are not classified as (a) loans and recervables, (b)) held-to-maturity investments or () financial assets at
fair value through profit or foss,

Civicdends on available-foc-sale equity instruments are recognised in prodit or Inss when the Group's
right to receive the dividends is estabilished,

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured ot cost less any identified impaimment at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment an financial
assets below),

Impairment of financial assels

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting perod. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence thal, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been alfected,

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

= gignificant fimancial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty: or
*  breach of contract, such as a defalt or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
» it becoming probabile that the borrower will enter bankruptey of financial re-organisation,

For financial assets carried al amortised cost, the amount of the impairment recognised is the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present valoe of the estimated future cash
flonws discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate,

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future gash fTows
discounted atl the current market rafe of return for a similar financial assel. Such impairment will nob
be reversed in subsequent periods,

The carrying amount of the financial assel is reduced by the impairment directly for all financial assets
with the exception of amounts dwe from subsidiaries and dividend and other receivables, where the
camrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account, Changes in the camrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the amaounts due from subsidiaries and
dividend and ather receivable are considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writhen off are credited to prodit or loss.

122 HOETWELL HICHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED  ANSUAL EEPORT 2aan T

171/232



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000oo0000o00ondn(ees3s)
Oooooooa

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels (confinued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carmed at amortised cost, if in a subsequent pesiod, the amount of the impaimmient
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event ocourring after the impairment: was
recopnised, the previously recognised impairment is reversed through profit or loss (o the extent thal
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amrtised cost would havis been had the impairment nod been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impaimment previously recognised in profit oo loss
are nof reversed through prafit or loss,

Fimancial liabilities and equily instruments

Debts and equity insdruments issued by a group entity are classified as either Ginancial liabilities or as
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrumenis

An equity Instrument is any contraci that evidences a residual interest in the asseis of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
procesds received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including payables and accruals and amounts due to subsidiaries) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the eficctive interest method,

Effective interest methad

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amontised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevani period. The effective interest rale is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and point paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective infémst gite, tansaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability. or. where appropriate, a shorter period, 1o the nel careying
amount on initial recognition,

Interes! expense is recopgnised on an eifective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights 1o the cash ilows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset 1o another entity,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit and loss,

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difierence between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fow the yrar erded 36 fane 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continucd)

Provision

Prowision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past evend, it is probabile that the Croup will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliabile estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reposting period, taking into account the risks and unoerainties
surrounding the obligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated o settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is materiall,

Equily-settled share-based payment transaclions

Eqquity-seftied share-based payments to employees and other providing similar services are measured at
the fair value of the equity instrumenis ot the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
wilue of equity-setthed share-based transactions are s¢f out in note 23,

The fair value of services receved, determined by relerence 1o the far value of share options and
awarded shares granted af the grant date, 1= expensed as stall costs on a straight-line basic aver the
westing petiod, with & coresponding incredse in equity share oplion feserve),

AL the end of the reponting period, the Groug revises its estimates of the number of share options and
the awarded shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount préviously recognised in share option reserve will
Lz transierred to shame premium, When the share oplions are foreited aiter the vesting date o ane still
ot exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transierred 1o retained profits,

Impairment on tangible assels

At the end of the reporting penod, the Group reviews the carrying amounis of its tangible assels to
determing whether there is any indication 1hal those assets have suifered an impairment. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment, o any, When il is not possible 1o esfimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
hetlongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets ane
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units. for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific
o the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have ot been adjusted,
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment on tangible assels (continuid)

I thee recoverabile amount of an assel (of a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carmying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating umit] is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment is recognised immediately in prodit or loss,

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is incoeased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but sothat the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-gencrating unit] in prioe years, A reversal of an impairment is
recofnised immediately in profit or loss.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors are
reguired to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the camying amoonts of assets and
liahilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an an-going basis, Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects anly that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both cerment and future
periods,

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the criterial judgements, apart from those invalving estimations, that the Directors
have made in the process of applying the Group®s accounting policies and that have the maost
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial stiements.

Classification of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited (“GS
Superhighway |V") and Guangdong Guangzhou-Zhuhai Wesl Superhighway Company

Limited (*Wesl Route |V™) as joint ventures

Bath G5 Superhighway [V and West Route |V are limited liability companies whose legal form confers
separation between the parties to the joint arrangement and the Company itseli, Furthermore, there are
no contractual arrangements or any other facts and circumstances that specify that the parties to the
joint arrangement have rights o the assets and abligations foe the liabilities of the joint armangement,
Accordingly, G5 Superhighway [V and ‘West Route |V are classified as joint ventures of the Group.
Details ane set out in note 16,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainly tcontinued)

Key sources of estimatlion uncerlainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment (o the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Interests in joinl venlures/share of resulls of joint venlures

fil  Amaorfisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures

Amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group is calculated based
on units-of-usage basis, ie. the matio of actual traffic volume of the undedying toll expressways
fior a particular period over the tofal expected traffic volume of the undedying ol expressways
over the remaining concession periods of the service concession agreements, The fotal expected
traffic volume over the remaining concéssion period was estimated by the management with
reference to a report prepared by a thicd party traffic consultant in prior year taken into
consideration of varnous factors such as the annual growth rate of the raffic volume, the actual
traffic volume in the recent periods, the change of the tramsportation network of the region and
government poficies relating to the toll expressway operation in the PEC. A= part of the
established policy of the Croup, the management has reviewed the iotal expected iraffic volume
at the end of the reporting periods. Adjustments may need 1o be made to the carrying amounts of
concession intangible assets should there be a material difference between the total expected
trafiic volume and the actual fesults,

As al 30 June 2017, the interesis in [oint ventures amounbed o BMBS5, 171 822 000 (approximalely
HEKS5,958,054,000) (2016: RMBE, 176,025,000 (approximately HKS7 207,421,000]) and the
share of resulls of joint ventures for the year then ended amounted (o BEMBGED, 353,000
{approximately HESYF0,3008,0000 (2016: RMB556, 178,000 (approximately HKSG6659, 260,000,
Included in the share of resulls of joinl ventures was an amount of EMB592,754,000
(approximately HKSH75,815,0000 (2016 BMB3 21,789,000 (approximately HKS62 Y, (42,0000,
which represemted the share of amodisation of concession inlangible assets of the joint venlunes
of the Group, The management considers that the amorisation is calculated by reference to the
best estimates of the total expected traffic volumes of the underying 1oll expressways and they
should not be materially different from the actual traffic volomes in future, The current year
amortisation of concession intangible assets is more (20162 less) than the amorntisation estimated
in the prior financial year based on the then expecied traitic volumes for fulure financial years
and the efiect on share of resulis of joint ventures is approximate to RMEBE11,711,000
[approximately HK$13 491, 000) (2016; RMB17 485 000 (approximately HKS20,405, 0007,

{if]  Resurfacing obligalions of the joint venlures
The joint ventures of the Group have contractual obligations under the contractual service
arrangements to maintain the toll expressways 1o a specified level of serviceability over the
respective concession periods. These obligations to maintain or restore the loll expressways,
except for upgrade services, are to be recognised and measured as resurfacing obligations.
Resurfacing obligations had been made at the present value of expenditures expected to he
incurred by the joint ventures to settle the obligations,
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty icontinued)

Key sources of eslimation uncerlainly (cantinued)
Interests in joinl ventures/share of resulls of joint ventures (continued)

(i) ' Resurfacing obligations of the juinl ventures (continued)

Ad i 30 June 2007, the interests in joint ventures amounted o RMBS, 171,922,000 (approximately
HES5, 958,054,000 (2016: RMBEG,1 76,025,000 (approximately HKS7,207,421.0001 and the
share of results of joint veniures for the year then ended by the Group amounied 1o
RMBGED, 353,000 {approximately HKS776,308,0000 (2016: RMB556,17 8,000 (approximately
HES665,200,0000). Included in the interests in joint ventures, an amount of RMB179, 787,000
fapproximately HES207,115,0000 (200 6; RMEB149,406,000 (approximately HKS174,356,0000),
which represented the provision for the resurfacing obligations of joint ventures of the Grouap.

The armout expected o be required 1o setthe the abligations at the end of the réporting period is
determined based on the number of major resurfacing works (o be undertaken over the
concession periods under the service concession agreements and the expected costs o be
incurred for each event. The costs are then discounted to the present value based on a pre-fax
discount rate,

The expecied costs for maintenance and rsurfacing and the timing of such events to take place
imvolve estimates made by the management, which were based on the resurfacing plans of the
Group, hstordcal costs incurred for similar activities and the latest guotations from Lhi service
provider.

If the expected expenditures, resurfacing plans and discount rate were different fram the
management’s current estimates, the change in resuriacing obligations is required to be accounted
fow prospectively.

The management are of the view that the discount rate currently wsed in the current estimate
should reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligations,

(i1} Income taxes of a joinl venture

As at 30 June 2007, as included in interests in joint ventures, an amount of RMB54,513,000
(approximately HKS62.822,000) (2016: RMBG67,293,000 {approximately HKS78,531,000))
represents the deferred tax asset of a joint verdure in relation to its unused tax losses, The
realisability of the deferred tax assel mainly depends on whether suffichent future profils or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. If the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

5. Segment Information

The Group's reportable and operating segments are determined based on information reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Information reported to the chiel operating decision maker, including segment revenue, carnings
besfiare interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDATY, depreciation and amortisation, intenest
and tax, and segment results, is more speciiically focused on individual toll expressways projects
jointly operated and managed by the Group and the relevant joint ventune partner. Accordingly, the
Group's reporting and operating segments under IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are therefore as follows:

= Guangzhou-Shenzhen Superhighway (“GS Superhighway”)
= Western Delta Route

Starting from the year ended 30 June 2017, the management simplified disclosure 1o reflect
full operation of Western Delta Route as a whole instead of separated as Phases |, 1l and 111 of the
Western Della Route, The comparative figures have been restated for consistent presenlation purpose.

Information regarding the above segments i repartid below,

Segment revenue and resulis

LY
.
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VWestern Dt Roue HUE WA ETIE AN L
Tatal LOLEN  LMETE  GRME D A
Corprea ke icare s
ook depusis s
Cirporal bzt icare s
loc made by he Dol
i e i
(et incemme: LI
Coprate graveal arel
neRuing fpeie
i depreciien ALY
Corpira T toe i35
Comorale bz un e (1244
et s hurgs o el
elitn] imme ) (ke R
P o e L]
Pt fcm B e aRTORCIbe b
sen-coatrafing st 159
Pt it foe o atrEatable
oy of the Comgany s

Motes Mot exchange boas (el of mlated income b 5 composed of e Growsp’s shame of the et excharge Joss et of relabed
EcniTie Lkl of 4 [t ventune of RMB2L 00,000 (2006 RMBE 156,000) and the net eschange gain of the Group of
RAABS, 521,000 (2016; RME2, 329,000, '
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5. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and resulls (continued)
(FOR INFORMATION PLRPOSE ONLY)

Jly

. e
e BTN morbaon and i
MO MO G G

S Seppeeghy VAT ISTS  E) i)
Wt et Rt AT OSHAN QI8N QA

o A 1AM FiRdE (AR
(it inkersst income Bam

Civpta inkevestincome fiam
Ko ke by e Crong
i o verber

{chet ircome
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Copatae fisancy oot
{ivpataie income Ln experse
ot g ko et ol
related incoone U (ke
Proi fx e yrar
Poudid i thee e avibtable 1
ro-curtrolieg ity
Proit o the year atribotable i
e of the Cormpuen

Mt Net exchangs biss (it of selitid Isconss tax) b composed of the Group's share of the mest eachangs ks et of mlatad
Inscome tax) 4 & [obnk vendue of HES2E 140000 (3006 HKS101,011 0000 amd the net exchange gain of the Group of
HESG, TH5, 000 (015 HI$2, 559, 0004

The segment revenue represents the Group's share of joint ventures’ toll revenue received and
recelvable (net of business taxfvalue-added tax) from the operations of toll expressways in the PRC
hased on the profit-sharing ratins specified in the relevant il.'lll'll venlire agreements_ All of the segment
revenue reported above is earned from external customers,

The EBITDA, depreciation and amortisation, and interest and tax represent the Group’s share of joint
venlures” EBITDA, depreciation and amortisation, and interest and tax from the operations of toll
expressways in the PRC before net exchange gaindloss, based on the profit-sharing ratios specified in
the relevant joint venture agreements,

The segment results represent (i) the Group's share of joint ventures’ resulls from the operations of toll
expressways in the PRC before net exchange gaindoss (net of related income tax) based on the profit-
~sharing ratins specified in the relevant joint venture agreements; (i) net of the withholding tax
attributed 1o the dividend received from and the undistributed earnings of the joint ventures; and (iii)
amaatisation of additional cast of investment in joint ventures, This is the measure reparted to the chiel
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

5. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and resulls (continued)
Thes total segment results can be reconcibed oo the share of results of joint ventures as presented in
consolidated statement of prafit or loss and other comprehensive income as ollows;

2016
RNME 000
Total segrment results 610,692 734,369
Alel:
Meet exchange loss (net of
related income tax) (64,3560
Withholding tax attributed to
the dividend received from and
the undistributed sarnings of
thi joint ventures (Note 9) 20,842

Share of results of joint ventures as
presented in consolidated
statement of peofit or loss and
other comprefensive income 556,178

Other segment information

The below other segment information, included in the measure of sopment profit or loss, represents. the
Group's share of interest income of the joint ventures. Such amount relating to the joint ventures are
eliminated under equity methad of accounting to reconcile from “Segment total” to “Consolidated
todal”.

-GS Western
Vear Superbighway  Delta Route

{FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE CNLY)

G5 Western Sepment Cormsliclated
Year Superbighway  Della Route fotal  Elfimination  Unalfocated fatal
HIS 00 HIKS 000 HIKS D00 HKS 000 HKS 000 HES 000

2016

1.535 4,641 14,6411 43,914 43914

o -
b
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Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information

The aperations of the Group®s joint ventures ane located in the PRC. All of the joint ventures’ révenus
from external customers was geaerated from the services provided in the FRC and the location of the
non-current assets excluding interests in joint ventures and investment amaunting to RMB283,000
{approximately HES325,000) (2016: RMB47 3,000 {approximately HKS552,000)) are in Hong Kong.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as they are not
regularly provided to chiel operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Other Income

2016
RMEO00

Interest income from:

Bank deposits 20,609
Laans rreaeles by thee Group Lo
a joint venture (Mobe) 9,166
Met exchange gain 3,314
Managemen| fee income from
joi ot vemunes 1,164
(Hhers 15

19,543

Note:  Loans made by the Group 1o a joint venture with principal amounts of RMBETSE 000,000
carried interest at fixed rate of 5.75% per annum and was repaid during the year ended 30 June
2006,

Finance Costs

2016
EME 000

Interests on bank loans (Rote) 211 .

Other financial expenses 1,562
3,793

Note:  The hank lnans carried interests al prevailing commercial lending rates ranging from 0.78% o
1.41% per annum and were repaid during the year ended 20 June 2016,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

8. Share of Results of Joint Ventures

2016
RAMEB 00

Share of resulls of joim ventures before
share of imputed inlerest expenses
incureed by a joint venlure on
inderest-fress registered capital
contributions made by the Group
and amortisation of additional cost
of investments in joint ventures 636,683
Amortisation of additional cost of
investments in joinl ventures (80,5051
Share of imputed interest expenses
incurred by a joint venture on
interest-free registered capital
cantributions made by the Graup (38,4560
Imputed interest income recognised
by the Group on interest-iree
registered capital contributions
madle hy the Group 8,450
556,178

9. Income Tax Expense

2016
RAME 0

Thie tax charge comprises:

PRC Enferprise Income Tax (*EIT®) 41,009
Deferred tax (Mole 25) (9,923)

31,086

N provision for Hong Kong Prafits Tax has been made as there was no assessable profit derived from
or arising in Hong Kong for bath years,

The EIT charge of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017 included an amount of RMBE4,223,000
{approximately HKS97,702,000] (2016 RMB39,765,000 {approximately HKS48,159, 0000 represenling
the 5% withholding tax impaosed on dividends declared during the year by a joint venture of the Group
of which the corresponding amount had already been provided for deferred tax in prior vears in
respect of undistributed earnings of a joint venturs,
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The incom tax expense for the yedr can be reconciled to the profit before tax per consolidated
statemment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016
RAG DN

(8,188)
12,60
(167,315

(12,257)

48,159 |

Profit befone tix 551,577
Tax at nosemal PRC income Lax rale of

25% (2016: 25%) 137,894
Effext of different tax rates an incomis

tax expense (1, 217)
Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purposes i, 7 551
Tax effect of expenses nol deductible

for fax purposes 10,467
Tax effect of share of results of

joint ventures (139,045)
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings

of the joint ventures (Note 25) (9,923)
Withholeling tax on carnings

distributed by a joint venture 389,765
Income tax expense 1,086

10. Profit for the Year

2016
RAB'000
Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:
Auditor's remuncration 1,325
Directors’ emsduments (MNote 111 20,226
Cither staff costs 11,202
Total stafi costs 31,428
Depreciation of property and
eqjui prient 140
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments

Directors’ emolumenis
The emoluments paid or pavable to each of the 8 (201 6: 9 Directors were a5 follows:

iicy
S Commdutions
Orin”  asclolier Doovionar o etsemest |
i b D Dot plary Told
Rt RmTE AR SN RWEDe
Sir Consory Vg Shomng WU/ b 13 - - 1381
ekl Mg Chang HO n 100 I - 1T
T s W/ 165 [ty 1 (] 484
Mz Chi Hang CHAN ifote o) 3 14 i ] A1k
Cherg Hel A iNose B L] L] L = (1]
Churg g POC ] - 3 1
Yil Cremg P A - - - i)
Briar Dol Mas Bam Ll e m = - - i}
Mleinclen |arson LIN isose i i - - e
14 11156 Al L
{FOR INFORMATION PLURPOSE ONLY)
i
Deecton”  andlothy Dbcwtonary 1 bt
iy benefn bonm et plan
HEFDN  HEION MR HUjw
S Gorder ing Shean WU W g -
ikdie Fing Chung HO o 1461 LI -
Thomn fefersan WU i (511 1 B
Al Chi g CHAN flote 1y b | LE 1 B
Cheny Hel [ icse b M kM -
(Chung Kecng POCK o - 3 =
Tk Koy P ] - - =
B s Mo Bam L e 7 - - -
Alewirrles Lirnom LN iNoe i il - - =
11 110 s 3%
oS

A M Adan Ol Hurg CHAN coased b ct a3 2 member of the Bemunesation Commsines on 3 Augis 2015, He wakved his
additional direcior’s foe for acting os a membser of the Remunoration Committes for the perkod from 1 July 2005 1o
25 Aagust 2015,

b wie Chieng Hui [IA resigned as an Esecutive Direcion with efiect feom 1 March 2006 due. o his retiremoent,
s Brlan David Man Bun LH wean appainted tis 30t as a member of the Remunemntion Committes on 26 Wiﬂtﬁr

e Alpxander Lanson Lin was lﬁ:nlulcl as an Mwm Directir om 9 M.nr 201
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11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments continued)
Five highest paid individuals’ emaluments
O the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Groop, 4 (2006: 50 wene Directons whose
details of their emoluments ane disclosed above,
The emoluments of the remaining ane (201 6: nil) highest paid employee was as follow:

2016 |
RAME 000

Salaries and other benefits =1

Discretionary bonus -
Contributions W retirement
benetits plans =

During the years ended 30 |une 2016 and 30 June 2017, no emoluments were paid by the Croup to
any af the persons who are Directors ar the five highest paid individuals of the Group as an
inducement o join or upan joining the Group or as compensation fior loss of office,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

12, Dividends

2016
RAMEB 00

Drividends paid and recognised as
a distribution during the year:
Interim dividend for the year ended
30 June 2007 paid of RMBE.6 cents
fequivalent o HK9.594 16 cents)
{2016: for the year ended 30 June
2016 of RMB&.4 cents fequivalent
to HKD. 97370 cents)) per share 258,862
Final dividend for the year endexd
30 June 2006 paid of RMBS.2 cents
(equivalent o HK9. 54840 cents)
(201 &: for year ended 30 june 2015
paid of RMBB.A cents (aquivalent
to HK10. 16650 cents)) per share 258,862 313,300
Special final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2016 paid of
EMBA0 cents (equivalent o
HE46.57760 cents) (2016: for year
ended 30 June 2015 paid of
RMB18 cents (equivalent to
HE21. 78540 cents)) per share 554,704 ] ] 671,359

1,072,428 %749 1.292.018 2

Final dividend for year ended 30 June
2017 proposed of RMB11,6 cents
[equivalent to HK13.58986 cents)
(2016: for year ended 30 [une 2016
of RMBS.2 cents (equivalent tn
HKD,54840 cents)) per share 252,699

Special final dividend for year ended
30 June 2017 proposed of RMB10
cents {equivalent 1o HK11.71540
cents) (2016 jor year ended 30 June
2016 of RMB40 cents {equivalent to

HEA46.57 760 cents)) per share 1.232.676 08,169 1,425,377
1,485,375 ! 3 1.729.629

A final dividend and special final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017 of RMBI1.6
cents (equivalent to HK13.56986 cents) per share and RMB10 cents (equivalent to HK11.71540 cents)
peer share respectively are proposed by the Board of Directors. The dividends are subject 1o approval
by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and have not been included as labilities in
these consolidated financial staternents. The proposed final dividend and special final dividend are
calculated based on the todal number of issued shares at the date of approval of these consalidated
financial statements.
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13. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted carmings per share attributable to the owners of the Company
is based on the fol lowing data:

2016 2017 206 2017
RMEO00 - RMIB O HES'000  HKST00
(FOR INFORMATION
PURPOSE ONLY)
Earnings for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 511,332 622,671 613,702 710,451

2016 2017
Nember Number
of shares  af shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic and diluted earnings per share 3,081,690,26%  3,081,690,283

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2006 is under the
assurmption that there is no exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price
of those options higher than the average market price for shares for the period from 1 July 2005 up to
the expiry date of the share options (e, 37 July 2015}, The Group had o potentially: dilutive ordinary
shares in issoe during the pericd from 1 August 2015 to 30 June 20016 and the year ended 30 June
i) b8

14, Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group has established the MPF Scheme for its Hong Kong employees, The assets of the scheme
are held separately in funds which are under the control of independent trustees. The retirement
benefil scheme contributions charged (o profit or loss epresent confributions paid or payable by the
Giroup to the scheme at 5% of each of the employess’ momthly relevant income capped at HES30,000.
In addition, the PRC employees employved by the Group are members of the state-managed retirement
henefit schemes operated by the PRC Government. The Group is required to contribute 18% of their
payroll to fhe retirement benelit schemes to fund the benefits, The only obligation of the Group with
reespeect 10 the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes, Al
30 June 2017, there were no forfeited contributions available o reduce future obligations. The total
contributions made by the Group 1o the MPF Scheme and the PRC retirement benedit schemes (or the
year are RMB799, 000 (approximately HK$912,000) (201 6: RMBS76,000 (approximately
HES T, 0460, 00013,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

15. Investments in Subsidiaries

The Company
2016
RMBTHOO
Investment in subsidiaries 1.6816,650 2,120,031
Capital contributions ta subsidiaries 650,460 759,086

2,467,110 9 2,879,117

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 28,

16. Interests in Joint Venlures

The Group
2016
RME 000
Unlisted investments:
At cosl
Cost of investment in a joind venture 2,020,789 2,358,201
Additional cost of invesimends 2,320,218 ! 2,941,094
Share of results of joim ventures before
share of imputed inlerest expenses.
incurred by a joint venture an
interest-free registered capital
confributions made by the Group _ .
(net of dividend received) 2,552,963 2,979,307

Less: Share of accumulated imputed
interest expenses incurred by
a joint venture on interest-free

registercd capital contributions
mace by the Group {312,934} [365,194)
Less: Acoumulated amortisation of
additinnal cost of investments (1,346,656) | (1,571,547)
5,434,380
At amortised cost
Registered capital contribution,
al nominal amount 2,449,500 il 2858567
Fair value adjustiment on initial }
recognition (2,020,769) i2,358,261)
Accumulated imputed interest :
income recagnised by the Group 312,934 365,194
741,645
676,025 | _ 7.207.421
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures (contiaued)

The Group (continued)
Particulars of the Group™s joint ventures s al 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007 are as follows:

Place of
estahlishment Propartion of Propaction
and principl Fully paid regisered capital of voing
ﬂﬂ.un;qffw ﬁ.lu- nd'nprr.ll!m man‘u'd r.p'ta' F:E‘p.lixﬁmr mu-hbm rg__hldi'_
RAGRROBENLE  ThemC il Development, ot applicable 50%
Guungzsey-Shenrhes-Zhubai (Moge ©1 opeasion ded
Supeshighmay Company maragement of
Limited A0 ey
EREGEARELEERLE  The PO RME4,399, 000,000 Development, 5% 50%
Geingdang Cuardehou-Lhihs [Note E opesasion asd
Wesd Seperhighway Company management af
Limited N SRSy

Bath joint venlures are sino-foneign co-operative joint venture enterprses estabilished 1o nvest in toll
expressways projects in the PRC,

The: principal terms of the joint venture agreements entened into between the relevant subsidiaries and
the corresponding joant venture partner under which the joinl ventures operate are as follows:

(i) GS Superhighway |V
G Superhighway [V is established to undertake the development, operation and mandgement of
an expressway in Guangdong Province of the PRC running between Shenzhen and Guangzhou
"G5S Superhighway®l. The operation penod is 30 years from the official opening date 1 July 1997,
At the end of the operation period, all the immovable assets and Gacilities of G5 Superhighway |V
will revert to the PRC joint venfure partner without compensation.

The Group's entitlement to the profit of the oll operations of G5 Superhighway |V is 50% for the
initial 108 years of operation peniod, 48% foe the next 10 years and 45% foe the last 10 years of the
operation period,

The registered capital amounting to HES02, 000,000 (equivalent to RMBAT1,000,000) previously
injected by the Group to G5 Superhighway |V had been repaid o the Group by GS Superhighway
IV during the year ended 30 June 2008,

(i} West Roule |V
West Route |V is established o undertake the development, operation and management of an
expressway linking Guangzhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai ("Western Delta Route®) and was built in
three phases.

Phase | West

The fotal investment for the Phase | West is RMB1,680,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registercd capital of West Route |V amounting fo RMB588,000,000 which had been contributed
by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share (i.e, each to contribute
REMEZ94,000,0000, The operation period for Phase | West is 30 years commencing from
17 September 2003,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

16. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The Group (continued)

{ii) West Route |V (continued)
Phase 11 West
The initial estimated total investment for the Phase | West was RMB4,900,000,000, 35% of
which was funded by an increase in the registered capital of West Rouote |V hy
RME1, 715,000,000 in tatal which had been contributed by the Growp and the PRC joint ventune
partner in egqual share (e, each to contribute RMBRS7, 500,000).

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Geoup eatered into two amendment agreements with
the PRC joint venture partner of West Route |V to increase the total investment of Phase 1l West
by RMB1L,210,000,000 in aggregate to RMBG, 110,000,000, 35% of the increase in total
investment was funded by additional registered capital of West Route |V by RMB424,000,000 (n
total which had been contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share
(i.ee, each 1o contribute EMEZD 12,000,000 lapproximately HKS263,410,000))

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group entered into the third amendment agresment
with the PRC joint venture pariner of West Route |V to increase the total investment of Phase I
West by RMBG0O35,000,000 10 RMBG, 715,000,000, 35% of the increase in tolal investrmenl was
funded by additional registened capital of West Route |V amounting to RMB2 12,000,000 which
had been contributed by the Group and the FRC jaint ventune padnes in equal share (Le. each 1o
contributed REMEB 106,000,000 (appeoximately HKS1 29,214,000,

The toll-collection pernod for Phase || West is 25 yvears commencing from 25 June 2010,

Phase 111 Wesl

The todal investment for the Phase Il West is RMBS, 600,000,000, 35% of which was funded by
an increase in the registered capital of West Route |V by RMB1,960,000,000 in tolal which had
been comtributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partoer in equal share (e, each fo
contribute RMBOBO,000,000). The toll callection period for Phase NI West is 25 vears
commencing from 25 lanuary 2013,

As at 30 June 2016 and 30 Jure 2007, the fully paid registered capital of West Route |V was
RAABS, 899,000,000,

The Group is entitled 1o 50% of the distributable profits from operation of West Route [V, Al the
end of the respective operation'toll collection periods of Phase | West, Phase 1| West and Phase 111
Waest, all the immovable assets and facilities of each phase will be reverted to relevant PRC
governmental authority which regulates transportation without compensation, The registered
capital contributions are required to be repaid 0 both the Group and the PRC joint venture
partner. The repavments are required to be approved by the Board of Directors of West Eoute [V,
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The Group (continued)

Summarised financial information of joint venlures

Summarised financial infarmation in respect of the Group's joint ventures and reconciliation of the
summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interests in joint ventures recognised
in the consolidated financial statements are sel out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRSs. '

In respect of the years ended 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017:

2006
: G5
Superhighway  West Reate
v NG Total
AR 00 RME T KR O
Nom-currenl Asscls
Property andl equipment 2671 506,952
Concession infangible asets L687492 12,710,800
AENIRY 13217758
Current Assets
Bank balance and cash
= Cah aned cash eouivalints. 191,047 100,150
~ Tirne depesits with original
maturisy over heee moshs 50,000 -
Oehens ik 10,324
518221 130,47
Noa-current Liahilities )
Resurlacing obligitions {270,142} 184,039
Noe-curen Fnancial labiSties :
= thank and other hans (2,833,502 [B027.610)
(ehers {342,165 111,836
(L445.8009)  (8223.705)
Currenl Lishilities
Currenl financial lialukities
= Brark loans ' {1105, 805) {28,500/
- Divicensd payable (0, 000} =
- Interest payabie {1,181 (10.665)
Oehers {347,009} (25,279
{14 155} (337 4671
Bl assels af folnd veriures 5308512 4TRT050
ol the Group's insesest A% 0%
Net assets shared by the Group 1644086 23059 507605
Eficet of chamge in prodil shasing
ratia of a josnl venture over
the operation foll perod (35,151) - 35,153
et assets canfribuitatie i
ihe: G 260093 LINSN 500246
Carrying amount of adtional cod
ol invesimenis 1,135,908 7.0 1,173,562
Carrying amosn| of the Crongr's
interests in joinl ventunes LTaam42 L1118} b, 175025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

16. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The Group (continued)

Summariscd financial information of joint venlures (continued)
{FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE ORLY)

0T
' W v Total
HES T HICS D] HKS 00
Ron-curreni Assets
Praperty and equipment 516,597 51,613

Concrssion intangible assets 10138308 14,831,505
10654900 15455,118

Currend Assels
ilark balance and cash
= Cash and cash pouvabenty 43b,352 116875
~ Time: deposits with ariginal
maturity ves Shree months 58350 -
Otbets 065 15,390
BO4 TR 152,265
Maon-currend Liabilities
Resurfacing obligations 1113.254) 198,097
Ron-curmend fingncial Fabilifies o
= Bank and other loans (3,306,697 (4366, 454)
Othets (399,306 (130513
(4.020.259]  10,597.064)
Currend Liablities
Currern financial [iebifisies
= Bank kaans N23,474) (33,260
= Dhvadend payable {46,080 T
= Inlerest payable (1,378 2,473
Citbers 6384411 (6,09
ol ek N E L L
et sl of fuint vendures BANAIS 550640
Propotion of the Group's interest T _
Nt arssets shaved by he Group LO85649  2THMT 587HE%
Bfioct of change in peaiit sharing
ralin of 4 join? ventun over
the opetation period (41,022) - (41,022}
et s conlrbutable o . :
thi: Group LMAGT LTy SRR
Carmying amount of additional cost _
o invessments 1,325,604 4941 1,369,547
Camrying amaurt of the Group's
inferesds in joim! venluies. 47021 A0 7207420
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The Group (continued)
Summarised financial informalion of joinl venlures (continued)

2016
LS
Superhighway  Wesl Roode
¥ (L
RAME0 RAMB‘ (00
Toll revisrne inet of business s/
vakue-added tan) G Tl 1
Consuction e 16,47 5,163
Tulal ievenue 3115428 1:M7, 380
Canstiuctian o (36,479 {3,163}
(ther income and other expense (172,420 30087
Prvesion of nesarfacing changes (47,3000 (22,508
Toll expresoway operation expenses QB3 (2ETed
Geengral and ackinestrative et (B3, 10y Wha
Deepreciation aed amoisalion charges 1696,323) (362,602
Finance cosds {33,798 (442515
Incoume ax expense (Nate i {421,878 -
Prodit for the year (Note 1 1,42 363 80,653
Propection of the Cenup's inferesd 4% EL
Profit shred by the Group 596,37 40346
(FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE ONLY)
216
Cs
Supertighway  Wes! Rooie
M ¥
HES'000 HES N0
Toll reverce inet of business b
valveadded ) 3,700,851 1,255,555
Consiruction nevenie 25N 1,581
Tolal revenie 3,750,202 1,259, 24
Comstuction timts (42,571 (389)
[ithes ircome and other experse {206,965 1511
Prenision of resurlacing charges GoATY @74
Toll exprespway operalion epenses [461,088) {148,762}
General and administrative expenses (2,423 150,338}
Depreciation aed amortiation charges B35 3510
Finaneop ¢odts : (411535) (5328571
Income tax expenses (Node i {507,835} -
Prodit for the year iNole i} 1,4 636 47,250
Proportion of the Cavup's interesd % F
Profit sharedd by the Group 717435 48,020
Mol
i The tod s T eapieries i Wit Riaite [V mpiesents deformed e e

[l Prafi for the year of G5 Superiighway 1V schided the amount of BMBA6,834,000 |approxkrately HES52, 609,000)
representing tho met exchangs loss (i of related income tag (3006: RMBITS, 742,000 approcimaiely HICS0,440,0008.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

17. Investment

The Group
The investmen! represents interest in onlistéd limited company incorporated in the PRC and is
classified as available-for-sale financial asset. 1t s measured of cost less impairment at the end of the

reparting period,
18. Property and Equipment

The Group

Total  vehicles  equipment Total
RMEDOD  HKSTO0 HKSG00  HKST00
(FOR INFORMATION
FLRPOSE DNLY)

Furniture,
fruturres and Modor  fixtures and
equipment

RN TN

cosT
As at 1 July 2015 547 4,681 5,228
Exchange adjustments = = Z
Additinns
Disposalsiwritten of
A at 30 Jure Hi6
Exchange adjustments
Dispasalsiwritien aff
As at 30 Jane 2007
DEPRECIATION
A At July 20015 413 4354 4967 37 5,692 6,209
Exchange adjustments - - = (38 (3781 (416
Charge for the year 105 85 150 17 102 P ¥i)
Eliminased o0 disposale!
writlen off
A at 30 jurne 2006
Exchange adjustments
(harge foe the year
Eliminatend om disposals!
witiea off

As al 30 June 207

CARRYING AMOUNTS
A al 30 Jure 2006

As at 30 fune 3017

5,51 0515
ELL] (453}

CER

The above items of propery and equipment are depreciated over their estimated gseful lives of 3 1o 5
years from the date on which they became available for their intended use using the straight-line
method,
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19. Amount due from a Subsidiary

The Company

The amount dee ffom a subsidiary classified under non-current assets is inderest-free, unsedured and
with no fixed nepayment term. In the opinion of the Directoss, based on their assessment as at 30 June
2006 and 30 June 2017 of the estimated future cash flows from a subsidiary, the amount due from a
subsidiary will not be repayable within one year from the end of the reporing period, accordingly this
amount is classified as non-current. The effective interest rate on the amount due from a subsidiary at
the end of the reporting period ranged from 0.66% o 4.92% (2001 6: L66% 0 4.92%) per annum,
representing the borrowing rates of that subsidiary. As at 30 June 2017, the amount due from a
subsidiary amounting o RMB582,3139,000 (approximately HKSGT0,654, 0000 (20016: RMB557, 598,000
fapproximately HKS651,067,0000) are denominated in HKD and the remaining amount ded from a
subsidiary amounting to RMBSE33, 564,000 (approximately HES983,306,000) (2016; RMBS40, 267,000
lapproximately HKS$9E0,591,0001) are denominated in RMB,

20. Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries

The Company

The current portion of amounts due from subsidiaries and the amounts due to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayabde on demand. As at 30 June 2017, amounts due from subsidiaries
of RMBG0, 471,000 {approximately HKS69,662,0001 (20016: RMB57,790,000 {approximately
HKS67,441,000)) are denominated in HED and the remaining amounts due from subsidiaries. of
RMBETED, 729,000 (approximately HKS208,200,000) (2016: RMB225,798,000 (approximately
HKS263.506,0001) are denomimated in RMB.

As al 30 June 2017, the amounts due 10 subsidiaries of RMEB1,985,000 (approximately HK$2,287,000}
(2016 RMB1,777,000 (approximately HK$2,073,0000) are denominated in HKD and remaining
amounts due to subsidiaries of BMB&1 8,444, 000 (approximately HK3942 846,000) (2016:
RMB1,922 000 iapproximately HKS2, 247,000 ane denominated in RMB.

21. Dividend and Other Receivables

The Group
The following is an analysis of the dividend and other receivables outstanding at the end of the

reprirting period:
2016 - 2016 2017
RMBO00  RMBOOG  HKSOO0  HKS'000
(FOR INFORMATION.
PURPDSE ONLYI

Dividend receivable from
a joint venture (MNote) 19,200 = 11,406 Ty
Interest receivable 474 1,652 552 1,903
Cithers. 1 1 3 e
19,675 1,662 22,960 1,915

Mote:  During the year ended 30 june 2007, dividend declared by a joint venture to the Group
amounting to RMEB1, 684,256, 000 (approximately HKS1 954, 04.,000) [2016: RMBF5_ 300,000
{approximately HKS963, 1684, 0001,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 360 fune 2007

22. Bank Balances and Cash

The Group

As at 30 June 2017, bank balances and cash include the time deposits with maturity of three months or
less, bank balances and cash carry interest al market rates which range from 0.01% to TO36% (2016:
D01 % to 5.24%) per annum,

Analysis of the bank balances and cash of the Group by currency:

2016
RAME D00

A 651,787
HED 624
United States dollars (*LSD") 24

652,435 761,392

The Company

As at 30 June 2017, bank balances and cash include the time deposits with maturity of three months or
less, bank balances and cash carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 10.36% (2016:
0,07 % to 5.24%) per annum,

Analysis of the bank balances and cash af the Company by currency:

20h
RMEB' (00

RME 651,657
HED 25
LIS 24

651,689
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23. Share Capital

The Group and the Company

MNumber Nominal
of shares ameund
- HKS 000
Crrefinary shares of HES0.1 each
Autharised:
As a1 July 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017 10,000, (R, Q0 1,000,000
Number of
shares Neminal asmol
Equivalent to
HKS000 RMBTO00
Issued and fully paid:
As at 1 July 2015, 30 [une 2016 and 30 June 2017 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603

Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved by the written resolutions of the then sole sharehalder of the
Company passid on 16 July 2003 and approved by the sharchalders of HHL at an extraordinary
peneral meeting held on 16 July 2003 (the “2003 HH Share Option Scheme®). The 2003 HHL Share
Ciption Scherme shall be valid and effective for a peod of en vears and the purpose of which s o
provide the Company with a means of giving incentive (o rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
ar providing benefits to (i) any executive or non-gxecutive difrectors including independent
non-executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or par-time) of each member of the
Girawp; (i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by any employees, executive or
non-executive directors of cach member of the Group; (i any consultants, professionals and other
advisers 1o each member of the Group (ivl any chiel executives, o substantial sharcholders of the
Company; (vl any associptes of director, chiel executives, or substantial shareholders of the Company;
and (vi} any employees (whether full-time or pan-time) of substantial shareholders of the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve from fime bo time.

Share options granted mus! be taken up within 28 days from the date of the offer lelter opon payrment
of Hk$1, payable as consideration on accepltance, which is recognised in profit or loss when received.

Upan the expiry of the 2003 HHI Share Oplion Scheme on 15 July 2013, no further oplions was
granted but in all other respects the provisions of the 2003 HHI Share Option Scheme shall remain in

full force and effect, and options which wene granted during the lie of the 2003 HFHI Share Option
S¢herme may continue o be exercisable in accordance with their respective lerms of issue,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year erded 0 fuoe 2007

23. Share Capital (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses the details of share options granted under the 2003 HHI Share Option
Scheme by the Company to its Directors and employees at nominal consiceration;

Kiurmier of dhares e o ranied

Ibeihitee!
) aeniar share
Sataerignion ALY lobe 2015 Mrveerenis damg ibe prav At 5 fose 2016 e df e e
Diate of prant pacepershae  Dulibinding Granied Ensrciied Lpwed  Ootmdig  Devibe  of eeetive
HI§ HKY
14 by 2008 i 400,000 = = 0G0 = - L]

Weighted everage eerie e (1% L) KiA H WA KA

Mo share options under the 2003 HHI Share Option Scheme were granted, forfeited, vested or
outstanding during year ended 30 June 207,

The followings ane the particulars of share aptions granted under the 2003 HHI Share Option Scheme:

Number of Exercise price

Date of Grant share aptions Vesting period Evercisabile period por share

HKS

24 July 20048 160,000 1 August 2008 to 1 August 2009 1o 3.8
31 July 2009 1 July 2015

24 July 2008 160,000 I August 2008 to 1 August 2010 1o 5.8
37 July 2010 3T July 2015

24 July 2008 160,000 1 August 2008 1o T August 2011 1o 5.8
31 July 2071 31 July 2015

24 July 2008 10,000 I Auguest 2008 te I August 2012 to 5.8
31 July 2012 1 July 2015

24 July 2008 160,000 1 Aupust2008 10 1 Aupust 2013 10 5.8
31 July 2013 31 July 2015
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23. Share Capital (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)
Share option expenses charged to the profit or loss are based on valvation determined using the
Binomial model. Share options granted were valued based on the followi ng assumptions:

Nomber Fairvals  Closing Frpocted Soboptimal

of options  of optioms share priceat  Evercise  Bipecked  Option  Rskfree  dividend  evercive
Date of grant graied  pranted dateofgrant  price  volatifity ffe e yield  dactor
— _hu WS  HKE B .
14 fuly 2008 B00000 843,000 54 S5 BN Tyews  360%  Ab6% 1

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous year, The effects of time to vest, non-transterability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations have been taken into account in the model. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the management’s best estimate. The value
af share options varies with different variables of cetain subjective assomptions.

A new share option scheme was approved for adoption by both the shareholders of HHL and the
Company effective on 22 October 2013 (the “20013 HHI Share Option Scheme™). The 2013 HHI Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a peried of ten vears and the purpose of which is o
provide the Company with an altérnative means of giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to (1) any director, chiel exécutive or employie (whother
full-time or part-time) of any member of the Grouap: (il any discretionary object of a discretionary trust
established by any director, chief executive or employee {whether full-time or part-time} of any
member of the Growp; (i) a company beneficially owned by any director, chief executive or employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Group: (iv) any consultant, professional and
ather adviser o amy member of the Groop or any consultant, professional and other adviser proposed
to b appointed to any member of the Group lincluding any of their employees, pariners, dingctors or
executives); (v any associates of any director, chief executive, or substantial shareholder of any
member of the Group; and (vil any director, chiel executive or emplovee (whether full-time or
part-timel of the HHL Group (excluding the Growp) and for such other purposes as the Board may
apprave from time to time, No share options under the 2003 HHI $hare Option Scheme were granted,
forfeited, vested or outstanding in both years prosented.

Share award scheme

On 25 January 2007, an employees’ share award scheme (“HHI Share Award Scheme®) was adopied
by the Company. The HHI Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period aof 15 years
commencing from 25 Janwary 2007, Pursuant to the rules of the HHD Share Award Scheme, the
Company has sel up a trust, HHI Employees” Share Award Scheme Trust, for the purpose of
adrministering the HHI Share Award Scheme and holding the awarded shares before they are vested,

For awarded shares granted on 25 January 2007 according to the HHI Share Award Scheme, the
awardees shall not dispoce of, nor enter into any agreement to dispose of the relevant awardhisd shares
in the 12-month period commencing on the vesting date thereof,

Theere wesre no awarded shares granted, forfeited, vested or outstanding in bath yvears presented,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the yar erded 360 fune 2017

24.Share Premium and Reserves

The Company

The Company's reseries available for distribution represent the share premium and rétained profits.
Under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman lslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject 1o the provisions of its
Memarandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of a
dividend, the Company is able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can only be distributed out of the
retained profits and share premium of the Company, As al 30 June 2007, the Company’s reseries
available for distribution to its sharcholders amounting (o RMB4, 038,585,000 (approximately
HKS3,969,757,000) (2016: RMB5,327,440,000 (approximately HKS5,116,629,0001), comprising
retained profits of RMBD33,826,000 (approximately HEKS1,065,131,0001 (2016: RMBGS0, 716,000
{approximately HE$777,667,000)) and share premiom of RMB3, 104,759,000 (approximately
FHES2.904,626,000) (2016: RMB4, 646,724,000 [approximately HKS4,338,962,000)).

Share
Share  Translation option Retained
preanun reserve resEre prodits Total
FME 000 RMB 000 RMEB 000 RME 00 RMB O
: siiote 1
Asat 1 July 20015 5,367,936 (970,954) an 900,419 5297772
Profit and total comprehensivi
inComie for the year - - = 297,650 247,650
Expiry of vesied share options - - {371} 37 -
Drivedends recognised as
digtribution during the year
(Mode 12) (Z21,212) 166,508 - 517,724} (1,072,428)
As at 30 June 2016 4,640,724 (BO4,446] - BBOF16 4,522,994
Frofit and total comprehensive '
income for the year - - - 775,397 775,597
Chvidends recognised as - N
distribution during the year
iNate 12 {1,541,965) 287,703 - (522487) (1,776,749)
As at 30 June 2017 304,759 (516,743) - 933,826 3,501,842
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24. Share Premium and Reserves (continued)

The Company (continusd)
(FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE DMLY

Share
Share  Translation option  Relained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
HES000 HKSO00  HKSO00  HES000  HKSD00
T heatee if)
Asat 1 July 2015 5,010,321 596,955 422 1,044,601 6,652,299
Exchange loss on translation 1o
PreCAalion Curency = (427.625) = = 1427625}
Profit for the year - - - 353,304 353,303
Total comprehensive (expensel
incame for the year -~ |427,625) - 353,300 174,327)
Expiry of viested share options - - 422) 422 -
Dividends recognised as
distribtion during the year

 {Note 12] (671, 3590 (620,659) (1,292,018

As at 30 June 2016 ;

Exchange loss an transtation fo
presentation cumency

Prafit for the vear

Todal comprehensive lexpense)
income for the year

Dividends recognised as
distribution during the year
iNote 12)

As at 30 June 2017

Mol

i Belore the change in funcibinal curmency of the Company frem HKD t0 RME during the year ended 30 June 2000, the
exchange diflerences recognised in transkation reserve representesd the difference betvesen the equity fransactions and
sccumulated carnings tranalated at the exchange rates a1 the rangaction dates aned the assets and |iabilities panslated at
the chasing rates at the end of ach repoiting period.

Thee special final dividend for thee yesr ended 30 |une 2016 of RMB4D cent (H006: for ke year ended 30 June 2005 of
RMBIH cents) per share ameounting o spproimately BAW01, 354,262,000 (2006 RAMES 54, 704,000) was dissibuted from
the share premium arisen at the time helore the change in fenctional currency of the Company from HED 10 BMEB.
Accondiighy, the shane premiim and (hi comespanding trandlatbon reseras hid been deliied by RMB 541,965,000 (201 6:
RMBT21,21 2,000 anel credised by RMBIATTO0,000 (2016: RMBT 0, 500,000 respectively.

e The tramlation reserve reprosented the sceumulabod net exchange difference arising on translation of the Comgany’s
financial statements deseminated in RMB, the functional curency af the Company, o the presentation curency o the
Crmguny afte the change in fusctnaal cusmescy of the Company,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

25. Deferred Tax Liability

The Group

The amount represents the deferded tax liability associated with the undistiboted earmings of the joint
wentures, The movement of deferred tax liability s as fol lows:

RMB M) HIES TN

{FOR

INFORMATION
~ PURPOSE ONLY)

Asat 1 July 2015 137,335 171 668
Exchange adjustments - (10,721)
Chargee to profit or ks 29,842 35,412
Rehj:as_q:- 1o pnnl_"n_l :n:_nr_lnss upan payment of withholding tax (39,765) (48,159)
As at 30 June 2016 127,412 146,690
Exchange adjustments - (856)
Charge to profit or los 37,026 42,276
Release o profit or loss upon payment of withholding tax - (B4,220) 97, 702)
As at 30 June 2017 0,215 92,408

26. Capital Risk Management
The Group manages its capital 1o ensure that entities in the Group will be abile to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to awners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance, The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the pior years.,

The capital structiere of the Group comsist of equity attfibutable to owners of the Company, Comprising
isswed capital, share premium, retained profits and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of this review, the Directoss consider
the cost of capital amd the risks associated with each class of capital, The Graup will balance is
overall capital structure through the issue of new dehi or the repayment {:Fexisl'ing deht.

The Directors monitor the uiilisation of bank loans and ensures full compliance with loan covenants
cluiring the vear,
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27, Financial Instruments

(a) Calegories of financial instrumenis

The Group
2016 2017 2016 w017
RA M0 RMB000 HKS'000  HKS'000
(FOR INFORMATION
PLIRPCISE ONEYI
Financial assels
Loans and receivables including N -
cash ane cash equivalents 672,110 470,893 74,152 542,469
Available-for-sales financial assed 4,785 4,785 5,585 5513
670,895 475,670 789,937 547,982
Financial liabilities I .
Amortised cost 4,460 6,746 5,205 7771

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Dircctors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oveesight of the Group’s risk
managemen! framework, The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, o sel appropeiate risk limits and controls (o moniloe risks
and adherence o market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations, The Directors
monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group 10 ensure
appropeiate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner,

The Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management and does nol engage in
trading of any financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for hedging or
speculative purpose.

There has been no change ta the Group’s exposore (0 marked risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the ;marm-ﬂn:r 363 foner 2007

27. Financial Instruments (continued)

{b) Financial risk management objectives and palicies (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposure (o exchange fluctustion arise. Certain of the financial assets and financial liabilities
al the Group are denominated in HKD or USD which are currencies other than their
respective functional currencies of the respective group entities. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates,

The carrying amounis of the fowign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liahilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period are o follows:

w2007 2016 i 2006 017 00 2007
RMETO0 | RMBOO0  HEST00  HESO00 AMETO0  RMBTON.  HESTO0 | HKST00

{FOR INFORMATION (FOR INFORMATION

| PURPOSE ONLY) _ PURPOSE ONLY)
s 1 A bl EL 2 = : =
HKD 625 B4 05 4435 R0 50w 6986

The Group currently does not have a foreign cumency hedging policy in respect of foreign

Cumency exposure.

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency risk of the Group and a joint venture is mainly concentrated an the
fluctuation of RMB, the functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries and a joint
venture as at 30 June 2017, against USD and HKD. The following sensitivity analysis
includes currency risk rélated o USD and HKD denominated monetary items of mespective
group entities and the joint venture,

The sensitivity analysis includes only ouistanding foréign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign curmency rate
and all other variables are held constant.

As the carying amounts of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities of
the Group (excluding its joint ventures) were not significant, the Directors ane of the opinion
that the Group's exposures to foreign currency risk is minimal. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

As at 30 lune 2017, a joint venture of the Group had outstanding bank loans and bank
halances denominated in HKD and USD that are not the functional currency of a joint
venture (i.e. BMB) The foreign currency risk associated with foreign currency bormowings
expased by a joint venture is reflected in the share of nesults of joint ventures. If exchange
rafe of RMB against HKD and USD had been strenpthenediweakened by 5%, the prodit for
the vear attributable (o owners of the Company for the corment year would increase/decrease
by RMB4E 458,000 (approximately HK$55,824,0000 (2016: BMB49,169,000 (approsimately
HES5 10, R0
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27, Financial Instruments (continued)

ib) Financial risk managemen! objectives and policies (contineed)

(i} Interest rate risk
The cash flows interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily to variable rate bank balances
with details as set out in note 22 and the varable rate bank loans amd bank balances of its
Joint venturnes.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest risk in relation to certain bank balances, with
details as set out in note 22, The management confinues to monitor the fair value interest
rate exposure of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 30 June 200 7, the Group (excluding its joint ventures) are exposed (o cash flow interest
rate in relation o the variable rate bank balances. I interest rate had been 100 (2016:; 100
hasis points higherlower, the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for
the current year would increaseddecresse by RMBA,691,000 approximately HKS5,404,000)
{2016; RMBG,524,000 (approsimately HRST, 614,000,

As al 30 June 2007, the joint ventures of the Group are exposed 0 cash Mow interest rate
rigk in relation to the variable rate bank balances and bank loans. IF interest rate had been
1000 2076: 1000 basis paints higher/lower, the prafit foe the year attributable o awners of
the Company for the current year would decreasefincrease by REMB49,910,000
lapproximately HKS57, 496,000 (2016: RMB48, 127,000 (approximately HKS56, 164, D004,

(it} Credil risk
The Group's credit risk s primarily attributable 1o it dividend and other receivables and
bank balances.

AR 0 June 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure o credif sk which will cause a financial
loas to the Croup due to failure to dischasge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position,

The Group has signiiicant concentration of credit risk in its dividend receivalile from a joim
venfure, The management is responsible io exercise the joint control on the relevant
activities of the joint venfures with a PRC joint venture partner (o ensure the joint veniures
maintaining favourable financial position in order to reduce such credit risk,

In addition, the management and the respective joint ventures are responsible for monitoring
the procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts, in onder
i minimise other credit risks. The management is also responsible for reviewing the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporing period o ensure that
adequate impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regared, the Directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced,

The credit risks af the Group on liquid funds are limited because the counterparties are
hanks with pood reputation.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fow the yrar erded 36 fane 2017

27. Financial Instruments (continued)

{b) Financial risk management objectives and paolicies (continued)
livl Liguidity risk

The Group's treasury activities are centralised to achieve better risk contral and mininise
the cost of funds. Cash is generally placed in bank deposits mostly denominated in BMB.
The management ainrs 1o mainiain a balance between continuily of adequate funding and
the flexibility throwgh the use of bank and oher borrowings. The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are reviewed regulardy o mitigate the effects of fuctuations in cash
fiowes, The management will cansider new financing while maintaining appropriate gearing
ralio,

The carrying amounts of the financial liahilities represent the undiscounted cash flows that
the Group is fequired o pay and ang repayvable on demand. All the financial labilities are
non-interest bearing,

{c} Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial labilities are determined on a recurning basis in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis,

The Directors consider that the carrving amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their faie
values,

28. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 30 June 2006 and
30 June 2017 which principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group as the Directors ane
of the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries would be of excessive length, None of the
subsidiaries had issued any debl securities during the year o at the end of the vear,

Antriburahle  Proportion of
equily inlerest voling power

Place of Issied and hedd by el by
ﬂTEEH’M meorporafion — fully paid share  the Company ~ five Company i'rm_agﬁlﬂ'p_
Kingnice (BVR Limited Batiish Wirgin Islands Ordinary shares i7.5% 100%  Investment holdang
{Formerly knuw as LSS 10000
Kingnice Limited)
Hopewell China Development  Hong, Kong Oedinary shares.  57.5% ol ssoed 100F%  Investment in
{Superhighway) Limiled HKS?  ordinary share sy project
Non-vobing
deferred shanes
HES4
Hopewell Guasgrhog-Thuhai ~ Hong Kang Crdinary shares. 100 of issued 1007% Investment in
Soperdughway Devilgpment HKS:  onfinary shaees ExpEAWy ol
L Hon-viting
dederred skares
HK2
HHI Finance Limited Hang Kong Cirdinary share HKS1 10 100f%  Loan finance

Except HHI Finance Limiled, all the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company,
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Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

2016 -z 206 T
RME 000 RMBOOG  HKSUO0  HKS'000
(FOR INFORMATION
PURPOSE ONLY)
Misimom lease payients paid
under operating lease for
premises during the year 1,152 1,261 1,394 1,439

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has commitments for fulure minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows;

2016 2007 2016 2017
RMB000 RMB 000 HKS000  HKS'000
(FOR INFORMATION
PURPOSE ONLY)
Within one year 1,053 = 1,239 =

As at 30 June 2017, the Group doess not have any negotiated bease agreement.

As af 30 June 2016, leases were negotiated for a lease term of one year and four months with fixed
renals,

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017, the Group has no outstanding capital commitment.

Related Party Transactions

Amounts due to and from related parties are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position and relevant notes. During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group paid rentals,
air-conditioning, management fee and car parking charpes 1o fellow subsidiaries amounting to
RMB1,414,000 (approximately HKS1,613,0001 (2016: RMB1.459,000 (approximately HKS1,765,0001).

The registered capital amounting to HES702,000,000 (equivalent to RMB47 1,000,000 previously
injected by a subsidiary of the Company o GS Superhighway IV was repaid by GS Superhighway [V
during the year ended 30 June 2008, According to the Law of the PRC on Chinese-foreign Contractual
Joint Venture, in relation to the repayment of registered capital befoce the exping of the joint venture
operation pericd, the subsidiary of the Company, as the foreign joint venture partner, is required to
undertake the financial obligations of G5 Superhighway |V to the extent of HE$702,000,0000 when
G5 Superhighway |V fails to meet ifs financial obligations during the joint venture operation period.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of kéy management personnel who are all Directors is disclosed in note 11,

HUPEWELL HIGHWAY IMFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED  ANNUSL REPORT 208607 157

206/232



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000oo0000o00ondn(ees3s)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the yrar wernded JEF e 2007

32, Guarantee
As at 30 June 2007, the unutilised uncommitted banking facilifies of the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiary of RMBE434,028,000 (approximately HKS500,000,000) (2016: RMB428,449,000

(approximately HKS300,000,0000) are goaranteed by the Company, The Company is able to control
the utilisation of the Gacilities

33. Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements on page 107 to 158 were approved and authorised for fssue by
the Board of Directors on 16 August 2017,
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Appendix — Consolidated Financial Information
(Prepared Under Proportionate Consolidation Method)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For year ended 30 fune 2017
(FOR INFORMATION PLRPOSE OMLY)

2016
RAB 000

Toll revenue 2,000,924 2,407,450
Revenue on consfruction 19,001 F 22,280
Turnover 2,021,015 2,429,730
Other income and ot her expense (Node ) (9,197) (9,898)
Construction costs {(19,0891) (22,2800
Provision for resurfacing charges (34,108) ) (41,010
Toll expressway operation expenses (245,834) i (295,703}
Ceneral and adminisirative expenses (101,974) (122,807)
Depreciation and amortisation charges (596,231} : {716,478)
Finance costs (Mote i) (260,502 1313,0623)
Profit before fax 754,078 | 907,931
Income fax expense {233,587) (281,213} §
Profit for the year 520,491 | 626,719
Prodit for the year attributable to; ' _

Cwners af the Company 511,332 : 615,702 :

Mon-controlling interests 9,159 107

520,49 626,719

Enenes

[y Onber meome and ofles expense

6
RME M
Tt incorme from:
Bank diposits 30,750 3707
Loars made by the Groap to o joind ventuee LA - 11,348
Ienpuitasl irderest incnmme on intinesire
registered capical contritnations made
Iy thie G 10 @ jainl senbine 19,2248 23,120
e e hanpe lnas 10145, (LR LR rri]
Rertal incoms 28,560 14,288
Onbwria 13,244 15,061

19,197}

(G Finance costs

_ tw
RAE A
Intevest o
Bank hsins FERNRLY 281,358
Loars made by the Group fo 3 jind venture 4,583 B 674
Loars made by a joint veniure partner o
W juind veniune H24 - 773
Impitasd Imiorest on:
Fnberest-frew neglsgened capital condributkens
vk Ly a foisl ventune partms 19,218
Oithers 515 B20
250,71 31,545
Ot financial penses 1.7 2078

30 502 I
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Appendix — Consolidated Financial Information
(Prepared Under Proportionate Consolidation Method)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 fune 2017
(FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE ONLY)

2016 21 2006 27
RMEB'000 EEERMBBODY  HK5'000 EESEHAS D00
ASSETS
Mon-currenl Assels
Property and equipmen| 466,379 432,915 544,264 498741
Concession intangible assets 1L,630.547 11,101,501 13,574,016 12,768,929
Balance with a joint venture 370,822 393,372 432,749 453,764
Investment 4,785 4,785 5,585 5,513
12,473,533 © 11,932503 14,556,614 13,746,347
Current Assets - :
Inventories 1,173 1,115 1,369 1,285
Deposits and prepayments 1,920 1,611 2,241 1,855
Interest and other receivables 55,703 35,966 65,008 41,433
Pledged bank balances and deposits of ) -
joint ventures 252,028 434,191 294116 Eﬂﬂ,lﬂ
Bank balances and cash - :
— The Group 652,435 469,067 761,392 540,365
- loint ventures 9,750 431 11,377 TA09
073,009 948,381 1,135,501 1,002,535
Total Assels 13,446,542 12,880,974 15692115 14,838,882
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capilal and Reserves - :
Share capital 270,603 270,603 306,169 308,169
Share premium and reserves 402,00 7 5,255,732 7 ATB.T79 6,058,169
Equity attributable fo owners of - -
the Company £,672,620 5526335 7,786,948 6,366,338
Mon-contralling interests 46,554 - 30,826 54,328 35,51
Total Equity 6,719,174 5,557,161 7.841,276 6,401,849
Mon-currenl Liabilities
Bank and other loans of joinl vemunes 5,373,629 5,834,763 6,271.025 6,721,647
Balance with a joint venure partner 370,772 393,322 432,691 453,106
Resurfacing ohiigations 149,406 179,787 174,356 0715
Dederred tax liabilities 293,349 248,998 342,385 266,846
Chher non-current lRabilities 40,704 39,409 58,005 45,400

5,236,900 6,696,279 7,278,462 7,714,114

Current Liabilities
Provision, other payvables, accruals and

deposits received 369077 387,056 430713 445,889
Bank loans of joint ventures 65,086 1?1;,??__._# 75.807 19?,Blﬂ-
Oither interest payable 5911 6,523 6,694 7514
Tax liabilities 50,444 62,184 58,860 T1,636

490,468 627,534 572,377 722,919
Tatal Liabilities 6,727,168 | 7,323,813 7,850,839  £437,033
Total Equity and Liabilities 13,446,542 12,880,974  15692,115 14,838,882
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (the
"Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group") set out on pages 107 to 158,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("1FRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financia statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters - continued
Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs

We identified the amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs as akey audit matter
because significant judgementsisrequired in
determining the estimation of future traffic
volume which has impact on the carrying value
of the concession intangible assets of the Vs as
at year end and the amortisation charges for the
current and future years. As set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financia statements, the two
JVs of the Group are engaged in the
development, operation and management of
expressways under service concession
agreements with the right to collect tolls for
operating two expressways in Guangdong
Province of the People's Republic of China (the
"PRC"), one of which runs between Shenzhen
and Guangzhou and the other links Guangzhou,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai with the toll collection
periods ranging from 25 years to 30 years. The
Group has accounted for itsinterestsin these Vs
using the equity method of accounting.

As set out in note 4(i) to the consolidated
financial statements, the interestsin JVsasat 30
June 2017 amounted to RMB5,171,922,000 and
the share of results of JVsfor the year then
ended amounted to RMB680,353,000. Included
in the share of results of JV's, there was an
amortisation of concession intangible assets of
the JVs shared by the Group amounting to
RMB592,754,000 for the year ended 30 June
2017, which was calculated based on units-of-
usage basis, i.e. theratio of actual traffic volume
of the underlying toll expressways for a
particular period over the total expected traffic
volume of the underlying toll expressways over
the remaining concession period of the service
COoNCcession agreements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our proceduresin relation to the amortisation
of concession intangible assets of the two JVs
included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policy adopted and whether
such accounting policy adopted reflects
the consumption pattern of the
concession intangibl e assets and
benchmarking with other companiesin
the same industry;

Undertaking a detailed analysis on the
significant judgements and estimates
used in management's estimation as
mentioned below; and

Comparing the expected traffic volume
estimated by the management in the past
against the actual traffic volumein
previous years and the historical trend of
traffic volume, and then obtaining
reasons for any variances, aswell as
evaluating the appropriateness of key
basis and assumptions, including the
annual growth rate of the traffic volume,
the change of the transportation network
of the region and government policies
relating to the toll expressway operation
in the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters - continued
Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Amortisation of concession
intangibl e assets of the JVs - continued

Thetotal expected traffic volume over the
remaining concession period was estimated by
the management with reference to a report
prepared by athird party traffic consultant in
prior year taken into consideration of various
factors such as the annual growth rate of the
traffic volume, the actual traffic volume in the
recent periods, the change of the transportation
network of the region and government policies
relating to the toll expressway operation in the
PRC.

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Resurfacing obligations of the
JVs

We identified the resurfacing obligation of the
JVsas akey audit matter due to the
management's judgement involved in
determining the amount of provision by
discounted cash flow method which is based on
the number of major resurfacing works to be
undertaken over the concession periods under
the service concession agreements and the
expected costs to be incurred for each event and
then discounted to the present value based on a
pre-tax discount rate which could in turn affect
the amount of interestsin joint ventures as at 30
June 2017 and share of results of joint ventures
for the year ended under the equity method of
accounting for the reason stated in the above key
audit matter.

EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our proceduresin relation to evaluate the
resurfacing obligations of the JV included:
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Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology, key bases and assumptions
made by management in estimating the
obligations;

Assessing the reasonableness of the
expected costs of the resurfacing works
and the number of major resurfacing
works to be undertaken over the
remaining concession period based on
the technical report prepared by the
engineering department of the JVs and
the actual costsincurred for resurfacing
works in recent periods;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters - continued
Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Resurfacing obligations of the
JVs - continued

As disclosed in note 4(ii) to the consolidated
financia statements, the JVs of the Group have
contractual obligations under the contractual
Service concession arrangements to maintain the
toll expressways to a specified level of
serviceability over the respective concession
periods. These obligations to maintain or restore
the toll expressways, except for upgrade
services, are to be recognised as resurfacing
obligations in the financia statements of the JVs.

Asfurther disclosed in note 4(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, the interestsin
JVsasat 30 June 2017 amounted to
RMB5,171,922,000 and the share of results of
JVsfor the year then ended amounted to
RMB680,353,000. Included in the interestsin
JVs, there was a provision of resurfacing
obligations of the JV's shared by the Group
amounting to RMB179,787,000 as at 30 June
2017.

The expected costs for maintenance and
resurfacing and the timing of such event to take
place involve estimates made by the
management of the Group, which were taken
into consideration of the resurfacing plans of the
JVs, historical costsincurred for similar
activities and the latest quotations from the
service provider. These expected costs were then
discounted to the present value based on a
discount rate determined by the management of
the Group that reflected the time value of the
money and the risk specific to the obligation.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Evaluating the appropriateness of the
discount rate and the timing for
discounting used by the management
with reference to the borrowing rate of
the Vs, and

Evaluating the projected traffic volume
projection based on procedures
performed in the key audit matter related
to the amortisation on concession
intangible assets of the JV's as mentioned
above which is used for determining the
amount of resurfacing expense to be
charged to profit or loss in the respective
reporting period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financia statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
thisregard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of thisreport. Reasonable assuranceisahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

| dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. |f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Hung Suk Fan.

Ddoitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
16 August 2017
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